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™ Koname SAKABA

In General, Kaname Sokaba, in April 1944, succecded Kunji Suzuki as
fecen e b ool Mol . .
arca commaander of the Tokyo area P camps and commander of Omori and continucd as
such until the cessation of hostilities, '

Omori was o compact camp, in the approximate form of a squarc with -
sides approximatoly 400 feot long and contained only twelve buildings (Ex 244),
Sakaba had his officc and living quarters in the arca headquarters building, which
was . in the camp and dircetly oppositc the guard house and the moin gato (Ex 13, 26.
182). . From his window,, which was about forty fect from the main gate, he could
see persomnel entoring or leaving the guard house and the main gate and, in many
instancos, punishmont was administered just outside tho guard house (Ex 182),
Sakaba spent o great deal of time in Omori; woalking around the camp requiring Pi's
to bow and salute him, attending tho morming or ovoning roll calls almost daily .
and could sec the living conditions, the physical conditioh of the Pi's and tho
brutality to which thoy were subjected (Ex 6, 13, 24, 92, 155, 211). Sakobe was
genorally aware of the punishmont and beatings administercd to the P's (Bx 6, 209)
his policy beoing to encourago and foster brutality (Ex 99), On occasions, Sakabe
witnossed Fii's being beaton, including beatings administored by Watanabe, and did
not interfore (Ex 15, 26, 118),

The scnior P7 officor sought to protest to Sakaba and could not gain
an audicncc and on one occasion was beaten whon he attempted to do so (Ex 50, 182),
Watanabo was a disciplinary non-com (Ex 96) and administercd beatings on orders
from-Sakaba s . exccutive (Ex 211), In 1945, Sakaba visitod Mitsushina BT Camp
and addrcssed-the PU's through an interprotor, stating Tatanabe had been sent to
this camp to maintain order and disciplifhc., He also stated Tatanabe was dircctly
responsible to him for carrying out his orders and if thoy did not obey, Tatanabe
would punish them physically on the spot (Ex 1886), Fujii, o Japancsc nedical of-
ficer, stated he did not report Watanabo's beating of Lt. Bush because Sakaba kneow
Tlatanabo was always boating Pits (R 256),

As to Spocification 1: Not guilty, finding,

As to Spccification 2: The buildings in Onori during Sakaba's timc
wore filthy and were infosted with fleas, flios and rats duc to tho unsanitary con-
ditions, ospecially in the latrincs (Ex 13, 15, 24, 26, 36, L1, 55, 91, 105, 125)
and the »uthoritics.did not take stops to improve the conditions (R 732; Ix 36,
211).  [Iro Japancse modical officor performed operations without anesthotics,
despito =n adequate supply (Ex 13, 104), Pts had difficulty in socuring medical
attention (Bx 110, 125, 245) and medical supplics were not issucd although dhoy
wore available in camp (Ix 30, 43, 247). Despite the fact that glucosc and vito~
min extracts wero sent to camp, the Japanose failed to issue thon (Ex 36) and othor
available Red Cross medical supplics (Ex 99) and took Americaon Red Cross medical
supplies for their owm usc (Ex 121, 162), Sick prisoners worce often sent to work
over tho protests of Allied PV medical officers (Ex 15, 26, 100) and the Japancso
0D or non=-cormissioned officer passed on thoso who the P.7 medical officors recan-
mondod be cxcused from work and often sent these sick P's to work (Ex 24, 193,
203) . i E - :

- As to Spocification 3: Not guilty,f inding,

As to Spocification 4: Betwoen April 1944 and Jdugust 1945, Japaneso
porsonnel at Omori withheld and dostroyed incoming and outgoing mail from Anericon
~ond Allied PT's (Ex 53, 57, 116, 222). In iAugust 1944, P's were allowed to write
postecards home. In Docember 1944, the sane postcards were handcd.bagk to the :

senior FIT officer by Watanabe, who instructed this officer to burn them. Watanabe

. would often destroy the HI's incoming noil in their presence (Ex 247), Aftor ‘
Viotonabe was transferred and also after thé surrender, large quontities of incoming
mail that hdd been withheld for as long as nine nonths were roleascd (Bx 77, 94, -

174, 212Y% = .
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As to Spocifications 5 and 6: Strickon; dofensc motion (R €0«

As to Spocification 7 and sub-Specifications 7a, 7d, 7g and s DB=29
crow nembers and -submarine crow nonboers vwere called "Spocial Prisoners” by tho
- Joponese ond were separately confined at Omori during the time Sakaba was coamp conw
nander (R 602). Sakaba ordered that those "Speeiagl Prisoners" be given no medical’
*  care, This was overheard by am imorican medical officer (Bx 100) and Japancse wit-
" nessos also testified as.to this (Bx-216, 2173 R 979), - '

' ! . During at loast four air raids in 1945, "Specinl Prisoncrs" wore kopt
confined in their barracks, worc not allowed to go to the air raid shelters as worc
Jopanese porsonncl and: tho rogular prisoners. Sore of the borbs fell within 500
yards of the "Spocial Prisonmers'" barracks (Ex 101, 145, 156, 213), The quarters
for "Spocial Prisoners" wore inadequate (Ex 15) and the whalo comp and barrack
woro infested with fleas, flies ond vermin (Ex 26, 208; Sco also ovidence in Speci-
fication 2, supra), "Special Prisoncrs" wore confimed in on area without ruming
woter (Dx 36) and wore only allowed onc bath o month (Ix 31, 173, 195, 240). Onc
P stated ho was confined for three months beforo he was allowsd to wash his clothe
(Ex 31) ond anothor statod th~ordinary issuc: of soap to Fi's was deniod to "Specia
Prigsonors". (Ex 26), ; : '

L "Speoial Prisonors" werc without adoquate clothing (BEx 115) and avail-
" . ablo Rod Cross clothing was not issucd to thon (Ex 26). Available Rod Cross rodi-
- cines and cquipment werc not made available for treatront of "Speeial Prisoncrs"

- (Ex 13, 66, 138, 240), ' * : :

Author Gill, Amorican PV, was sufforing from dysontory and yollow

Joundice and was unable to oat the food furnished by the Japancse., Ho was unate
tonded for at loast o woek and despite ilnjor Boyington's complaint, Gill was not
allowed to rocoive medical carc. Finally, when it was apparent that ho vas about
doad, Fujii came in and gave hin blood plasmne. Tlic:P. nedical officer was ovontue
ally smugglod in but it was too late for him to do anything and Gill died in July
1945 of malnutrition, dysontery ond other causos (Ex 66, 100, 112, 137, 152, 173,
208, 213, 238). " B <

‘ s to Spccification 8: - it or ncar Omori, botwoon April 1944 ond Aug=
‘ust 1945, officers were compolled, against their-vwill, to do physical labor along

~ with onlisted persohncl (Bx 26, 77, 117, 186, 209, 211), wash the clothos of Japan.
~ ose porsonnel (Ex 15, 186), swoop and police thc aroa (Ex 15, 186), work in tho
loather shop (Ex 53, 154, 186, 194), carry coal and food into camp (Ox 118, 186),
cnpty the latrincs with o scoop and thercafter carry the human excrcta in buckets
(Bx 15, 77, 80, 118, 142, 136, 194). Tatanabe often imposed tho duty of cmptying

* the latrines on officers (Bx 77). ‘ i '

As to Specification 9: llot guilty, finding.

T 2, . LAs to Specification 10: Betwoen Lpril 1944 and August 1945, the ace-
‘ousod issucd orders that all prisoners, including officers, must salute all Jopan—
. ‘es¢ porsonncl, including coolies (Ex 45, 208, 246)., PT's who failod to salute and

- bow were boaten (Ex 26, 55, 100, 112, 224), Pi's woro roquired, on ontoring or

- loaving their barracks, to face tho nain office and salute (Ex 85)., For failurc t
salute, Watanabe nmade PI's salute troos’ and roquirod Pi's to s aluto tho windows

of his office (Ex 15). : L

As to Spocification 1l: Not guilty, finding.

, Ls %o Spocification 12: Botwoon Soptorbor 1944 and March 1945, Cap~ .
-tain van ‘Jormer, on Amcrican F., whilc dolivering food to the "Spceial Prisonors" -
ot Onori, passed the hoadquarters aroa and noticed-a group of Jopanesc, stripped’ -

z
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‘o thc woist, porft om:.ng calisthonics, On his way. bﬁ.c“, he VoS qtoppcd b7 tho
loader of the group, who he thon recognized as Kaname Sakaba. “Thile von “Jormer

- was standing at '\,t'ten'blon, Sakaba struck at his jow with his flst but only hit his
chost and when van “Jormer fell to the ground, he was not hit again or thercafter

pu.n:.shed (Bx 180, 186) " wom e ) :

FEis

Ls to Speelf‘lcﬂ.tlon 13: Strickon, dofonse motion (R 69).

4is to Spccification li: Unless noted to tlo contrary, all cvonts rc-
lated in thesc sub~specifications occurred at Omori botwoen April 1944 and husust
1945, during the tine the accused vms canp commandore.

. Ls to Spcciflcatiop l*a' In March or “prll 1945, ot the Shoodono
work sito near Onori, when a guard clained two bottles of Wine were missing, o
group of British Fi's, includinz “'illiam Boyes and ono Dawson, wore nade o I:nocl
dovm in o lince. The guard then struck each nan on the head with the butt of his
riflc, Six of these mon werc kocked out and Boyes was badly cut. Dawson was ine.-
ablc to work as o result of this_-a:n_d soon aftor cpllapsed (Ex 23, 30),

Ls to Spcclflca.cion 1ib: 1In tno swer of 1945; .at the Sheodorc worl
sits noar Omori, a Japancsc civilian guard, niclmamed "The Hadimon" s boat Norman
Albertson, om Ancrican P, for stoaling powdorcd milk., Llbortson wos boa‘ber dur -
ing o two-=hour pecriod with a stick and at the sanc time, albortson was requircc to
hold two buckets of water at arms length., Thoreaftor for sovon days, Albertson s
forced to stand at ottention betwoen 6 PoTle and midnight in front of the camp of-
fice (Ex 81, 157) -

Lis to Specification lic: Norman ilbertson, an Amorica.n P, stated
(Bx ;) that in.July 1944, hce was boaten by a guard for speaicing to a P who was |
confincd to the stoclade, Albortson vas ’choroa.fter roquired to stand at atteation
for throe nights and two days without roceiving food. Llbertson collapsecd twice
and woscr was thrown on him and ho was kickoed unt:l.l he rer'alned his fecot,

4Ls o SpOlelCO.‘blOl“ 14d: In or about July 19: 5, Steffes, an Anorloan
civilian FJ, was suspocted of stoaling rice at the Snoodone worl: sito, 4 guard
nicknaned "The ladman"beat Steffes around the back ond legs with his rifle. This
beea 'tln”‘ resulted in contus:Lons and the rupturing of otoffos‘ oqrdrun (Bx 71, 99).

v As o Specifications 140, 1if and 14@: ilot guilty, finding,

48 to Spocification 1lth: Tot guilty, notion of defensc,

s to Specification 1lii: Wot guilby, finding.

4is to Spocification 1‘45_1': Not guilty, riotion of defonsoc,

. As to Specification 14k: In the latter pfxr'b of 194z, at tho S’modonn
worlz, s:u.'bo near Ouori, Rac, a British Pi, was kicked and boaten by Fugijawa for _
about two minutes. " Rac woent to tho prisoners' hut to report this *to the sentry &
Fugijowa, acconpanicd by inzia, followed Rae into tho hut, DRae vias agoain beaton

by Fugijowa, who uscd a crowbar, and.by Anzia, who had & stool, pointed bill~hook
and anothor Japancso who uscd o stick, Roc struck baclk in self-defensc. Rac was
heroaftor triod and sont to o civilian prison (Bx 23, 26, 55, 221),

As to Spocification 14 1: (In tho oarlj part of 1945, at the Shoodone
work site nocar Onori, Gallqgllcr, a British P7, was boaton with a-stick by o Japan-
esc nicknamed the "Fat Illan", Gallaghor walked to the hut to report it to the scn- .
trye Mnzia, a civilian forcmom, “the "Fat: llan" and another Japoncse- followod
Gallaghor into the hut and hit hin with a crowbﬂr,' stick and b'xllng hooks. Gallaghc
~roported it to Licutonant Kato that ovening, who nade an mqulry and then told
‘ Gallagher he had’ received just punishnoat (Lx 176, 221),
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. As to Spccification 14m: Robert Rochm (Roehm), an Anerican F!, stated
(Bx. 164) Betwoon Scptombor 1944 and Doecombor 1945, Tukijinma (Keitoro Fukijina, Exs
.;14:7, 225) beat hin for: three hours with a lcather shoc .and. orderod *hat Ronlm was
not to roceive medical carc, = ’ - - -

e As to Specification 1l4n: Licutenant John N. Peurifoy, Jr., an Aneri-
con P, statod (Ex 1ZI7) that in Fobruary 1945, Keitaro Fukijing called for Pivg

.%o help unload food that arrived in canp, Being an-officor, Peurifoy did not think
“it appliod to hin and paid no attontion, ‘Fukijina forced him to stand at atteation
and thon struck hin sceveral hard blows across the foco with-a heavy leather bayonet
belt, = e - o : : b

: , 4s to Spccification 14o: /Andanto e S. D'Anort s an American P,
stated (Bx 60) ot Omori, in Soptombor 1944, he was boaten by Vatonabe and Fuki. jina
becausc - they thought that D'imore did not salute the guard housc. Thoy uscd thoir
fists and sticks, which resulted in D'Amorc receiving cuts and bruises about the
head, : ' LT

: Ais to Spooification l4p: Botweon April 1944 and Iy 1945, Keitaro
Fukijino (Ex 225) boat Sergeant Kitsoch, an Americon F7, and Lowis and Noville,
British Fi's, aciross the face with the bucklc of his bayonct belt, causing then to
be bruised and cut. This beating was givon becausc thosc Pi's allegedly did not
proporly cook the food for the Japancsc personncl (Ex 209),

Ls to Spccification liq: ot guilty, finding.

. L8 to Speeification 14r: Milford L, Bonnett, an Amcrican P7, stated
(Ex 22) during July 1944, ho was booten for about 45 ninutes by Sugahara, o Japane
ese soldior, beccausc Bemmott, on entoring a building, did not bow low to Sugahara,
Sugahara hit hin in tho face with his fists, : -

: : Lis to Spocifications 14s and 14t: In January 1945, R, 7. H. Lcton
saluted Tatanabo but brought his hand dovm before Tatanabo did. Watanabe. kmocked
“heton dovm with his fists three tines,’ cutting and bruising his face and kicking
hin while he lay on tho ground. iatanabe made Lcton stand at attontion without
his overcoat for six hours and in tho.samo ovoning hit Loton four or five tiios
with his sabbard. The noxt day, ‘atanabe lined up about forty Canadian RAi's and
Told thom thoy were too slow and hit every man with a bamboo stick, He lmoclksd
out)Riflernan Colemen's tooth and knocked Staff Sergeant Barton down (Ex 1, 26, 128,
187), : - ;

As to Specification l4u: On or about June.1944, Jerry V. Aherm, an
Americen HW, was beaten by Suzuki, & civilian guard. Ahern was required to stand
at attention while Suzuki hit him with his fists at least forty times in the head
and chest, The reason for this beating was because Ahern did not return to work
promptly after a rest period (Ex 2, Ahern), :

_ As to Specification l4v: In May 1944, when Captain Bruce llartin re-
fused to salute all Japanese, including civilians and military, Watanabe said as
& disciplinary matter, Captain llartin must do coolie worlt with the enlisted per-
sonnel, Captain Martin refused because he was being punished withouttrial and was
being foroed to perform labor although he 1ris an officer, The next day he vmas
called to Lieutenant Tetsutaro Koto's office and Vatanabe and Komura were there,
After a discussion, Lieutenant Kato repeated Watanabe's order to do coolie work as
punishment and when Martin refused,- Kato hit him with his fist and then continued
to hit him and kick him in “he face, stomach and groin, Although Martin does not
remember (Ex 117) being hit by Uatanabe, he states he may have been when he was in
& semi-conscious condition on the Fioor, lflany other witnesses state that Watanabe . -
.also kicked Captain Martin,- As ‘a result of this beating, lartin's nose was broken,

- both eyes were closed and he was sick in quarters for one week (Ex 2, 5, 6, 11, 19,
37, 41, 42, 45, 46, 56, 57, 72, 77, 84, 98, 117, 118, 119, 126, 131, 137, 141, 142,
143, 150, 152, 163, 167, 171, 172, 175, 176, 184, 198, 224, 229, 238, 239,_241,24-2).'

(p 65 of 101, Sakaba et 1, Case Fos 3(5)
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‘As to Specification ldw: Not gu:\.l'by, flnd:.ng.

: A.s to Spec:.f:.ca.'b:l.on l4x: Frank Sterln.ng Arcenaux, an Amerlwn RN’
stated (Ex 9) in the summer of 1944, Watanabe struck him across the bridge of h...s

: nose with the back of his sword, which resulted in his nose being broken,
. B

: As to Speclf:.oat:.on ldy: Comdr Mayer (Maher, Ex 211) was freouent]y
bea.ten by Watanabe on the slightest provocation (Ex 43) and in the summer of 1944,
when P officers failed to report for labor, Watanabe bea’b Mayer,xn‘bh the buckle~
.~ end of a leather belt, then Mnocked him down and kicked him in the ribs s &tomac!L
and groin, Ma.yer had to be hosp:.’calized as a result of this beating (Ex 9).

., As to -Speo:.flca’clon l4z: Not gu:l.lty, motlon by defense,

As' to Speéificatibn 14a.i, ‘Not gullty, f:.ndn.ng. '

-

As to Speclfloat:.on 14a2; Eugene R. Barhhart an American P, stated
(Ey 16) in Wovember 194%, he wes, omw two occasions, beaten across the head and
face with a rice pa.ddle by Wo,ta.na.be.

As to Speo:.flcation 14a3: Milford L, Bennett, an American RV, stated
(Ex 22) in June, July .and Ruglst 1944, he was frequently boaten by Watanabe, who
used his flstu and a -stick, .

s

As to Specification l4a4: Harold G. Beierstedt, an American P, was
beaten in December 1944 by Watanabe with his fists, belt buckle and scabbard for
1% hours and thereafter made to stand at attention for 2—— hours, This beating re-
sulted when he denied stealing clothing (Ex 18, 21, 246), "

As to upeclflcatlon 14ab: Wot guilty, finding,

" As to Spocifications 1406 and 14a7: Botween April 1944 and Docombor
1944, Airthur H, Buchanan, an American PW, was caught looking at a picturec in a
Japancse newspaper by Hiroshi Fujii, a Japancse modical officer, who accused him
of boing a spy and throatencd to kill him with a sword. Fujii could not find his
sword but boat Buchanan with his fists, throw things at him, kicked him when he

~ P0ll dovm and boat him unconscious with a broom, This beating lasted more than

Thirty mlnutos (Ex 39, 242) and whon Fujii woas exhausted, he released Buchanan
‘end told him to go to the barracks and wash the blood off his facce On Buchanan'r
recoohing his barracks in a dazed condition, Watanabe called him to attontion and
asked him why Fujii had beaton him, Whon Buchanan told him, Watonabe hit him in
the head with his fists and knocked him unconscious, On anothor ocoasion,
Wotanabe knocked him dovm and kickod him in the back, stomach and chest and throa
cned him with the point of his sword (Ex 39),

As to Specification 1l4a8: Not guilty, finding,

A . . As to Spccification 14a9: In Novomber 1944, Nelson A, Busch, an

Amorican PW, vwas in charge of a working party and failed to roport a theft of
-rice by a Pl when ho returned to camp., Watanabe, upon learning this, made Busch
stand at attention for fivo hours. During this time, Watonabe beat him about thc
head and body with a bamboo stick, concentrating on Busch's' loft m'lst xrhero
Busch had a boil (Ex 43, Busch).

As to\Specif:.catmon 14010: In November 1944, two American Pl's, in-
© cluding PW Arnold, rofusod to listen to Watanabo!s ordors concorning their work,
Tatonabe drew his saber and struck cach of thom over the hcad scoveral -times and
forced thom to stand at- attentlon’ for a pcrlod of tlne in the extremo cold wea-
ther (Ex 10, 51). ;

- As to Spco:.f:.catlon 14all. Not guil’i:y,’ findinge

(p66 of 101 Sa.ka.b'v. ct 1, Casc Noe 505)
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. As to Spocification 14a12: Botwoon April 1944 and August 1944, Waton-
abo boat lewis Williom Bush, a British MV, on many ocoasions (Ex 54, 57, 141,
149)e In May or Junc 1944, ho beat Bush and kicked him in the hcad and ribs while
he was on the ground.’ Wotanabe then picked up a fire oxtinguisher or bucict and
was about to hit Bush on the hoad with it whon Fujii, a Jopanesc officor, stopped
him, Fujii testified that his attention to this incidont was drowm by scrcams
and, in his opinion, if he had not stopped Watonabe, the fire buckot would have
‘killed Bush (Ex 184; R 253, 254), ‘ o o

As to Specification 14al3: Not guilty, motion by défonso..

As to Specification 14al4: In or about Octobor 1944, James, a British
W officer, who was over. sixty yoars of age, was severcly beaten by Watanabe for
failing to stand at stiff attention. Watanabe beat him with his fists ond o kendo
stick with the result that James bled from the nosc and cuts and lacerations gbout
his face, Whon Jomes finally fell dovm, Watanabe kicked him. -As a rosult of this
beating, James was vonfined to his bed for soven days and almost had a norvous
breakdovm (Ex 24, 26, 46, 77, 148, 152, 175, 184, 186, 222, 224, 238),

As to Specification 14al5: The allegod vietim, Fort Hanmond. Callahan,
an American FW, stated (Ex 46) during his confinement he was beaten ot least . fif-
teen times by Watanobe and on soveral of these times Watanobe used a kendo stick
ond on the other occasions hc used his fists and boots., On two of theso occasions,
_ the little finger of his right hand was broken when ho was trying to protect his
head with it, Woatanabe also forced him to run around the comp for an hour at a
time, shinc Watanabe ts shoes, cloan out the latrine and foreced him to stand at
attention outside his office in the wintor time for hours at o time. As a resuls
of these beatings, Callahan suffercd a completo norvous broalkdown (Ex 77, 144,222),

As to Specification 14016: Not gliili:y, motion by defonse,

i As to Specification 14al7: ‘In Febi'uar'y 1945, Watonabe forcod Galla~-
gher, an Allicd PV, to stand at attontion outside Wotanabo's office botwoon 9 cad
12 pem, for twenty days (Ex 55). - ; ‘

_ As to Specification 14al8: ilot guilty, finding,

As to Specification 14al9: Betwoen September 1944 ond Decombor 1944,
Watanabe beat Bornard G. LeBoau, on Amoricen P, on two occasions, striking him
with his fists about twenty times (Ex 110, LoBeau),

As to Specification 12a20: In October 1944, during retrcat, onc of
the guards discovered o pair of socks in the refusc can, Vhen no one admitted
threwing them away, Watanabe was called and ho made tho group of 125 men stand at
attention from 7:30 pem. until 1:00 am. until one prisoner finally confessed, Dur-
ing this time, an armed guard slappod those who did not stand stiffly, Commander
layer tried to intercede for the P who finally confcssed and Yatanabe boat Mayor
and kicked him when he was down (Ex 69) o ; :

_ As to Specification 14a21: In Novomber 1944, Wiatanabe took Lioutenant
Colonol H, Pike into his office for failing to salutc and beat him across the face
~ with a leathor belt. Watanabe then confined Pile to the guard housc vrithout
clothing for one day (Ex 77, 160, 224<Piko). '

As to Specifidation 14a22: Not _g.xilty, finding,

<

As to Specifiéa.’c:‘gon 14223: Not gui.l‘cy,‘mof;ion by dofonse,

As to Spocification I4a24: Not guilty, finding.

- ; ‘As to Vspecifi'cation 14p25: Betweon Septomber 1944 and Docomber 1944,
Watanabe beat Captain ?ampson with his fists for failingito yell attention loud
enough when Watanabe appeared (Ex 61, 80, 169), ; :

(p 67 of 101, Sakaba et 1, Case Mo, 30§)
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As to Spec:.fn.catn.on 14.a.zs Not g;ullty, finding,

As t,o .Speo:.fica.ulon 14027: - In May 1944, Captain David A. Hurt vas
beaten by Watonabe. P Hurt had, with the guards permission, made a changs in tho
_arrangement of the garden but when Waotanabe saw it, he started to beat Hurt befcre
.any explanation could be made. TWatanabe hit him over the head with a bamboo stick
and punched him with the end of it in the chest and throat and then threctencd to:
kill him, Watanabe then swing at him with his sword, missing P77 Hurt and hitting
the Vfooden support of the porch of he heo.dqua.rters building (Ex 179, 92~Hurt) .

As toSpeciTication 14028 Ir Novomber 1944, Watanobe and Kljoshl
Kono beat chry Fo Inman, on Americen P, and five other Mi's while 'blwey stood at
attention, usn.ng; their fists, feet, oempty saber scabbards and clubs, his beatins
lastcd abou:b s:Lx lours and the jow of one of the Pi's was brolcev (Ex 94~Inman).

As to Specification 14:0.'29: Not guilty, f‘:.ndn.ng. '

As %o Specification 14230t ot guilty, motion by defonsoe.,

As to Specification 14a3l: Betweon Septomber and November 1944, ifol-
son N, Koauffman, American medical officer, was beaton on six different occasio.
by Watanabe, who used his fists on thrée occasions and on threc other occasions
beat him with a bamboo rod, kicked him in the throat, pounded his head against ¢
wooden beam, lmock:.ng him unconsc:.ouo (EA 25, 26, 242, 103-Kaufﬁna.n).

As to Specl_flcatlons 14&32 and 14033: Wot guilty, finding, -

As to Speccification 1l4a34: About Novcmber 1944, Watanabe beat ounc
Nelms, an American P, for foiling to salute and bow when Watanabe entered tho P7
barracks, Watanabe hlt him about the face and shoulders and back with the butt
of his saber. As a result of this beating, Helms' face wmus swollon ond hisoyes
blackened (Ex 111),

As to Specification 14a35: Not guilty, motion by defonse,

As to Specificotion 14n36: Between August ond Decomber 1944, Francis.
Macey, on-Allied HI, failed to call his labor detail to attention when Watanabe
arrived, Watanabe struck him across the mouth vwiith his scabbard, lmocking out two
teeth. Thereafter whon Watanabe sowr P Macey, he would stend him at attontion and
strike him with his fist. . This happened on many occasions, averaging aobout four
days o weok (Ex ll4-Macey)s '

As to SpOGlflC&'blO“l 14237: Betwoon September and Decombor 1944,
Wa‘bszxbe beat Ceptain shorry, an Allicd PJ, on threce occasions, using his fists,
a wooden sword and a rifle butt, He then made. Cap‘balﬂ Sherry stand’ at attention-
for long periods of time (Ex 120),

As to Sper'lflcaulo.l 14a38: In Hovember or Deconber 1944, Lioutenant
A, J, Toulon, an American PW, was beaten by Wo.ta.na.be, vho used his fists, knocking
Toulon down about three times: (Ex 123),

As to Specification 14039: Between Soptem‘oer and Dccember 1944,
Wiatanabe sent Lieutenant Arthur Greenvillec Mcintire to the leather shop to a.ssomble
o group of officers. In a few minutes, Watanabe arrived at the leather shop and
reprimanded McIntire for taking so long, hitting him in the face and throat with
" his fists and knocking him dovm five or six times, He then lined the officors up
and -hit them with a wideweb belt that had a heavy buckle and metal fittings. He
thercafter dismissed all officers but MeIntire and Licutenont Nyrada and beat Lieu- .
tenant Nyrade in the face with his fists and agaln struck MeIntire, looscning his -
teoth (Ex 181, 124—McInt1re). : '
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As'tO'Specifioation 14040: TNot gullty, motion by defense,

As to Specification 1l4a4l: Not guilty, flndlng.,

- As to Spocification 14a42: Not guilty, motion by defense,

‘As bo Specification 14a43: Not guilty, finding.

- - As to Specification 1l4a44: In October 1944, Viatanabe called Together
o group of men who had boen leaving Gheir clothing at the work site and also called .
PV Ernost Frank Paul, who was a non-com in charge of this group, Watanabe beat
these men .and AT Paul with a kendo stick and then singled out KT Paul for o special
beating and practlcally knocked him unconscious (Ex 222-Pau1)

As to Spocification l4a4b: In Decermber 1944, Watonabe entered the
barracks through o window and because KT Ernest Frank Paul was not making the men
practice answering roll call as ordered, Tiatanabe beat P Poml with a sword scab-
bard and fists and thereafter made him S'La.nd at attention in the cold from 2100 to

0200 hours (Ex- 24, %zzz-Paul) , ‘ , _ _ , Ly

" As to Spcoifications 14a46 and 14a47: Not guilty, finding.

As to Spocification 14048: In November 1944, Watanabe beat Joe -
Gutierrez, an Ailied IW, with his closed ha.nds, knocking him dowm three times, for
fa.llmg to . call the deto,ll to attention when Watanabe o.pproa.ched (Ex 155),

As to Specification 14a49: On one occasion between April and December
1944, Captain Gould and Frederick Henry Richardson, Jr., contrary to orders for:.
bidding treatment of Allied and Amoricon Fi's after 6 pem., wore caught by Watanabe
troating several P's who were sick, Watanabe ordered them outside and made them
stond at attention while he beat 'bhem with his fists, eventually knocking them
both dovm (Ex 161—R10hardson)

As to Specification 14n80: Mot guilty, finding.

e As to Specification 1l4abl: In Decomber 1944, Watanabe beat Datti, afx
Americen PW s- for smoking in the barracks. Vatanabe jumped on Datti and beat and
kicked him in the neck, stomach and groin until Datti turned black and lost con=

sciousness, Watanabe a.ppa.rently then beco.me frightened and sent for a PV medical
officer (Ex 170),

As. 'to Specification 14062: On an occasion betwcen June and Decembor
1944, Watanabe called \i. F. Toms, a British P/, before him for not saluting a guard
while carrying two buckets in each hand, P7 Toms tried to explain to Watanabe
but Wavenabe hit him with his fists and then hit him o swinging blow with a bamboo
stick across the side of his head, k:nock:n.ng him unconscious., Tihen P! Toms regaincd.
consciousness, ho knocked him dovn again with the samo stlck (Ex 176=Toms),

As to Speclflco.’clon 14853: In June 1944, Tatanobe, or discovering
that Henllng; Te L. tinde, a British Fi, had failed to detail men to shine shoes as
‘ordered, called TJade out at roll call and struck him in the face with his fists.
Viatanabe then took him to his room and beat him about the head, face and neck with -
a wooden fenc:.ng sword (Ex 184-ade)s

As to Specifiications 1l4ab4-and 14a55: HNot ‘guilty, finding,

As to SEecifica.tion 14&56: Not guilty, motion by defense.

As to Spec:.flca:blon 14857: Between Apr:.l and December 19/‘:4 Alfred A.
Tfelnste:m, an American HT medical officer, wos beaten by Tiatanabe for no apparent -
_reason or for failing to salute Japanese officers, non-commissioned officers or
guards,- Tlatonabe used his fists, clubs, leather belts and a kendo stick, P ¥ein-
- sto:.n would be stood at a.ttent:.on and knocked down by one of these instrumonts and
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would immediately ‘scramble to rogain his feet %o aVO.\.d veing kiicked. This would be

repecated for about twenty minutes and then Watanabe would requirc him 4o stand at
a.t‘bention for one to throe ‘hours (Ex 6, 26, T7, 120, 184, 242, 166-T/einstein) «

As to Sp_eolficatlon 143.58' Not gulrl:y, flndlng.

As to Specifications 1La.59 a.nd 14260: N ot gull’cy, motion 'by deflense,

As to Speclflco:l'.lon 143.61: Wot gu:.l‘by, flndlng.

As to Sooclflcatlon 14'3,62 In Moy 1944, Robert A. Tusken, an Amcrican

Fi7. was boaten by Wabtanabe for failing tc salute, Watanobe beat him about the head,
caasmo' his eardrum to -burst and then made Tusken enter a tub of cold water and
: thrca‘bened to-drovm him and tnoreaf‘ter kep'b him sitbing thore for thirty minutes

(Ex 26 178-Tusken), . "

As to Specification 14a83: On divers occasions betwoen Aprit and Dec~
embor 1944, Vatanabe abused rumcrous Allied and American Fi's by slapping thom,
beating them, practicing ju-jitsu upon them, requiring them to stand at attention
for longﬁ periods of time, forecing sick Pi's Yo work and by humiliating and other=-
wisec abusing them, ‘latanabe established .a reign of fear and terror and one BT os-
timated that he beat, slapped and kicked about 60% of Omori Fi's during this period
(Bx 3; 6, 7,789, 1%, 15, -17,°18,:22,” 24, 26, 28,29, 30, 33,720, 43, 46. 50, 52,
55, 59, 60, 64, 69 70, 77, 80, 84, 90, 105, 106, llO, 112, 1k . 116, 118, 121,
15;, 166 140 149, 153, 154, 155, 158, 163, 164, 171, 172, 174, 177, 151, 185,
189, 194, 200, 202, 205, 211, 219, 222, 224, 229, 238, 240, 244, 246,)

As to Specification 14a64: In June 1945, a Japanese guard lmovm as
"Pm*ty Boy" puilisd out his sword or bayonet ond hit harry Co Liskowsky, an Ameri-
can F.I, on the back of his head and knocked him dowm., - This blow resulted in =
severc gash on Liskowsky's head that bled freely (Ex 15, 81, 112, 11l-ILiskowsky),

As to Specification 14065: In June 1945, Harold Dale Lane and scveral
other Allied Fi's were beaten when one of the Fi's was discovered with rice, The
guard called "The 0ld Man" beat Pi Lane, Each of the Pi's were then brought to the
guard house, were stripped and beaten with sticks and slapped with bayonets and BT -
Laxae and three otner Allied Fi's received slight cuts (Ex 206-Lane),

As to Spooii‘ication 14a66: In August 1945, near Omori, a guard gave -
I'loyd Ceverly and Captain Stoddard, Allied Piits, permission to make a stew. A
Japanese officer, kmown as "Shorty', came along and struck PV Caverly and PY Stode
dard about six blows across the face end head, knocking them unconscious. He sim-
ilarly struck Richard H, O%Zane, an American P, becguse hc was the senior Allied
officer present (Ex 12, 138-0!'Kane),

: As to Specification 14067: In July 1944, near Omori, Allied Fi's
Mclean, Cutter, Dawson, Cook and Herbort Gould were beaton by several civilian

guards, including guards with the following nicknames: "Spooner", "Boris", "Snot-
grass" ond "Spider", PT's were lincd up and beaten with sticks and Do.w.,on, who
enswored back, wes taken inside a’ hut and when he came bacik he bore signs of a
severe beating (Ex 85-Gould). - : .

: As to-Specification 14a68: In the latter part of 1944, Sergeant Kruge:
and Sergeant Goorge Arwood, American Pits, locked onc of their "straw bosses" in a
 cage ond enlled him "menkey". Lieutenant Tetsutarc Kato and Tatanabe lined them up
and -Whip{))ed ther with their hands and usodmjddo, on them end kicked them (Ex 136,
158, 174), .

.As to Epecification "14 a69 In August 1945, Pvt Suluki’ ontored the oar
ponter shop. where Kenneth Stull, an Allied P7, vios employed. Then Sukuiki-had trou-
ble with a tool he beat up P Stull untll Lleu‘beno.nu Davis 1nter'v‘enod (Ex- 174~St111
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As. %o Spec:.f:.catlon 140.70. Iri, a Ja.pzmese Pfc, punished Ar'bhur H,
‘Buchanan™and one Ladd, Allied Ri's, for failing to carry o microscope to the air
raid shelter during a B-29 raide Tri made them stand ot attention in the middle
of the parade ground and hit each of them. in the mouth, He then made them stand
out in the open durlng the air ra,ld (Ex oQ-—Bucha.nan). ) ’

As to _Spec;f:.co.t;\.on 14a7l: Not guilty, motion by defeﬁse.'

..As to Specification 14a72: Not guilty, finding.

As 'bo Specification 14a73: In Je.nuary 1945 o. Japanese guard nick=
named "Hophead" beat Sergeants Charles M, Howard and Cha.rles Kazarian, Allied PI's,
This beating lasted about 25 minutes and "Hophead" used his fists, feoct and the
butt of his rifle, Both PI's received sevore bruises in the groin and in the back
of their logs. Howard lost consciousncss and was again beaten when he recovered
(Ex 146), : :

8§ -

_ Asrto Specificatlon 14874: In November 1944, I‘ukoda, a Japanese
soldier, beat up Joha.nsen, on Americen P7-(Ex 210).

~As to Speclflca.tlon 14&75. Betwoen April 1944 and December 19M~,
Watanabe, on divers occasions, beat and abused Raymond L, Lucia, an Amorican Pij
officer, On one:.occasion, Watanabe accused him of not working in o proper manner
and beat him on the head and face with his fists, He repoa.tod this on three other
occas1gns and on a.not‘ler occasion, boat and kicked hlm (Ex 224, 209-Iucia).

As to Speclficatlons 14076 and 14:&77 Yot guil‘cy, finding,

As to Specification 14a78: Konneth Stull stated (Ex 174) that somo
time during the first part of 1945, atonabe ontored the PT barracks and beat hin
for not standing at attention, Watancbe knocked him dovm ten or- fifteen times and
stood him at attontion for onc hour. v b

As to Spocific&tions 1 079, 14a80, 14081 14 a82, 14083, 14a84 and
14085:  Not gullty, motion by defense, : -

As to Specification 14086: Tn.c alloged vietin, Ii,rold T. Hedges,
stated (Ex 88) on 15 August 1945; vhile workin in & gardon neor Omori, Tsugio
Nishida.found that someone had eaten a carrots After tho prisoncrs were stood ot
attention for a period of time, Hedges-stated he had caton' it, although actually
he had not done so, Nishida hit h:m ih the-jow with his fist, breaking onc of his
teeth, Nishida then knocked him dovm agains Thereaftor Kimura, a Japancse civil-
ian guard, made him stand at attention and struck him soveral times on the back of
his legs with the butt of his rifle, Each .time that Hedges fell t o the ground,
Kimira hit him across the arms and chest with his rifle, Kimura also ran his hob-
nailed boots down the front of his legs six or seven times, causing them to bleed
and then punched him in the face, causing his nose to bleed, Hedges was hospital=-
ized after his libeeption for intermal and. extornal injuries, resulting from this
beatlng. The fact of this beating is substantiated by meny affidavits (Ex 127,
213) in this record and {Ex 2, 3, 4, 6) in the record of U.S. vs Tsugio Nishida,
Case Docket 7156, :anorporatod by reforence in this record, Onc of the exhibits,
Exhibit 2, states Kimura boat Hedges on the orders of N da, who had departeds..
Nishida admits hitting Hedges (Record 29 of Casc Doclcetr?i\gG), although he states
he, only ordered Kimura, to warn the prisoncr,

. As to Spec:.f:.catlon 14087: In August 1945, o Jo.pa.nese officer nick-
- naned " Jumping Jock" (Tsugio Nishida, R § of Caso Dockei, #+156) discovercd the pris-
oners making a stew while working in a vegetablc gorden near Omori, TVhen Caverly,
- an ‘Americen BT, adnitted he had made the. scew, Nishida: struck hln twro” or threc
tmes, knocking him down (R 717, :Case Dockot 1 156).
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’As to Speoifipation 14288: Normen A, Albertson was asksed by Tsugid

Nishida why he wns being punished and on his reply Nishida became angry and struck
Albertson several times (Ex 13, Case Docket 7£156), :

As to Specification 14a89: Not guilty, finding, _
ok mmio—n‘m%: Towards the end of 1944, Henderson, a
British P7, was punished by Kojima, & Japanese c¢ivilian guard, for stealing, Ko~
Jjime. made him stand for one hour, sufficiently near a fire so that Henderson was
scorched but not burned, ¥hen Henderson attempted to move away, Kojima would strike

hin (Ex 221),

k : S ThoR SN A :
As to Specifications 14a91 and 14892: Not guilty, motion by defense,

R As o Specification 14n93: Botwoen April 1945 snd August 1945, one
Dawson was beaten at the Shibaura work site near Omori by Chiku, & Japanese soldier,-
Chiku beat him with his fists and kicked him in the face and back (Bx 225).

[

| As to Specification 14a94: Botwoen April <1945 and August 1945, Chiku
beat Cooke for allegedly slacking ou his works Chila beat Cooke with his fists and
kicked him about the face and body (Ex 223), _ ‘ :

As to Specification 14a95: Betw@en-April 1945 and August 1945, be=
cause. one of a group of twelve :Dutch and Javanese Fi's was late at a roll call,
Chiku beat each of the twelve with a stick (Ex 223), ’

[y

As to Specification 14a96: Not guilty, finding.

As to Specification 14a97: On 11 August 1945, Lieutenants Donald A,
Carlson, James Edwards and Gilbert Smith, American Pi's, were beaten by "Horseface"
(Yasushi Kimura) for picking up loose.goy -beans that were lying in the gutter,
Kimura beat the three of them with his rifle butt and fists and made them throw
the soy beans away (Ex 3, 11, Case Dockét 51, U.S, vs Kimuras incorporated into
this record by reference R 438, 439), :

. As to Specification 14a98: On or about 10 August 1945, while working.
in a garden near Omori, Ray F. Halloran, an American P.), was slapped by Yasushi
Kirura for lying down, Kimura slapped his face about twenty-five times,. causing -
it to be bruised and sore (Ex 3, Case Docket #51), : -

As to Specification 14a99: About 1 August 1945, Yasushi Kimira took
. a pair of side cutting pliers and struck Lieutenant Savadkin, an American P, about
the faco, cutting him in a dozen places (Ex 138, 208), '

: As to Specification 14a100: Between 3 April 1945 and 29 August 1945,
Lieutenant Irving S, Newman stole a cucumber while working in the garden and was
caught by Yasushi Kimura, who proceeded to beat him with his fists about the head
and face for 15 to 20 minutes (Ex 19-Hewman, Case Docket 7:51)e

) As to Specification 14bl: On or about 6 July 1945, Yasushi Kimura
beat Sergeant Olinto F. Lodovieci, am American P7, with his fists and with the barrel
and butt of his rifle for 45 ninutes (Ex ZO-Lodovici,rCase Docket #51).

: As to Spocification 14b2: In or about the month of July 1945, one
White, an American P.[, was discoverod by a guard near a box car which vms loaded
with food supplics. Then this was reported to- Yashushi - Kirmra, he beat Thite with
a stick about the face and body, causing 7hite's face to become black and blue and
to swell to about twice its size. -Irmediately thereefter, he forced TThite to stand
at attention for about two hours, holding a cast iron pot over his head, Evéry '
time Thite lowered the pot, Kimura hit Kin with his open hand or fist (Ex 21, Case
Docket. 51 )¢ - N : ' ‘ = : '
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o As to Specification 14b3: In January 1945, ten American Pii's, includ-
ing Beck~P, Northrup, Nolson K. Bush, Bert MeInnis, Carl Romollo, George Arwood ond
Kenneth Stull, were accused of having stolen rice balls, They werc linecd up by
Yosushi Kimura and another Japonese and each of them beat the ten ' Pi's with their
hands, fists and slippers for about thirty minutes (Ex 136~Northrup).

As to_Specification 15: Wot guilty, finding.

. As to Specification 16: The proof offcred in support of the sub-
specificatioms of this specification consisgted of ‘military cormission orders, show-
ing the cofivietlon of. individual Japanese of offcnses alloged in tho sub~specifica-
tions herein, which were cormitted at Sumidagawa P7 Comp, also known as Dispatch
Camp R0, located at Tokyo, at a time whon this camp was part of the cormand of thoe
accused herein, All these MCO's were issued as a result of Case Dockot 491, U, Sa
vs Mizukoshi et al's The commission took judicial notico of this case (R 412),

The exhibit number of the MCO admitted into evidonce plus a particular specifica~-
tion listed in said MCO's will be listed in support of thesc spocifications,

- . This roviewer has chocked the review and/or record of said Case #91
and finds that the cormission therein.could reasonably reach its finding, except
as to sub-specification ke : :

) : The following MCO's were listed into evidence: MO 117, HQ 8th Army,
dated 1 Deccmber 1947, Exhibit 3203 MCO 118, HQ 8th Army, dated 1 Dececriber 1947,
Exhibit 321; MCO 119, HQ 8th Army, dated 1 Deccrmber 1947, Exhibit 322; MCO 120,
IQ 8th Army, dated 1 Decomber 1947, Exhibit 323; MCO 121, HQ 8th Army, dated 1
Decémber 1947, Exhibit 324; MCO- 122, HQ 8th Army, datced 1 December 1947, Exhibit
3476 ‘ :

As to Specification 16a:  Speoification 1 of Exhibit 323,

" As to Specification 16b: VSpecification 2 of Exhibit 323,

As to Speoification 16d: Specification 4a of Exhibit 323,

As to Speoification 16e: Specification 4b of Exhibit 323,

As to Specification 16f$ Specifidation 4¢ of Exhibit 323,

As to Specification 16g: Stricken;, défonse motion (R 60).

As to Specification 16h: Stricken (R 10),

" As to Spocification 161t Specification 2 of Dxhibit 347,

As to Spcoification 16j: Specification 3 of Exhibit 347,

As to Specification 16k: Specification 4 of Exhibit 347,

As to Specification 161l: Stricken (R 10),

- As to. Specification 16m: S cification 6a of Exhibit 347,

As to Specification 16n: Specification 6b of Exhibit 347,

As to Spocification 160t Spocification 6¢c of Exhibit 347,

As %o Specification 16p: Specification 6d of Exhibit 347,

As to Specification 16q: Spocificatién 6o of'Exhibit 347,

SR As to S'ecifidatioﬁ 167 Specification 6f of Exhibit 347 and Specifi-
cation 1 of ExhibIt 322, : ' ~ s . ,

‘ (p 750f 101, Sakaba et 1, Casc Mo, 305)
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] As to Specification 16s: Specification 6g of Exhibit 347 and Spoci-
fication 2 of Exhibit 322, ' : ,

As to Specification 16t: Specification 6h of Exhibit 347 and Speci-
fication 4 of Lxhibit 322¢ ' R

: As to Specification l6u: Specificdtion 6j of Exhibit 347 and‘Spoci-
fication 4c¢ of Exhibit 323, : . .

»

As to Specification 16v: Spocification 6k of Exhibit 347 and Spoci.-
fication 5 of Exhibit 522, ; . .

ad As %o Specification 16w: Specification 61 of Exhibit 347 and Spoci-
fication 1 of Exhibit 324, e : s

i

- As to Specification 16x: Spocification 6r of Exhibit 347 and Speci-
fication 4 of Exhibit 324, ¥ ‘ e ,

5 As to SpebificatioanSy: Spéoification 6n of Exhibit 347 and Speci=-
fication 6 of Exhibit 624 5 E - . o

As to Specification. 16z: Specification 6o of Exhibit 347 and Speci-
ficotion § of ExXhibit ol4e e .

As %o Specificatioh 16aa: Spccification 6q.of Exhibit 347 and Spcci-
~fication 3 of Exhibit 324, : ’ . :

As ta Specifioation 16bb: Specification 6r of Exhibit 347 and Spoci-
fication 2 of Exhibit 324,

_ As to Spécification 16cc: Speoification 6s of Exhibit 347 and Addi=
tional Specification of Exhibit 3?4._ : :

‘ As to_Specification 16dd: Specification 6t of Exhibit 347 and Spoci- -
fication 1 of Exhibit 320, . e

e As to Specification 1l6ee: Spocification 6u of Exhibit 347 and Speciw
fication 2 of Exhibit 321, . )

J

As to Specification 16ff: Additional Specification 1 of Exhibit 347,

As to Specificaﬁion 16gg:  Additional Specification 2 of Exhibit 347,

As to Specification 17: In the same manner as Specification 16, the
sub=specifications of this spocification are supported by Exhibit 395, which is a
copy of MCO 264, headquarters 8th Army, dated 12 August 1948, resulting from Case
#188, U.S. vs Munajiri et 7, of which the cormission took judicial notice (R 412)
The reviewer has checked the review and/br rocord and finds that the ecxhibits and

¢ tostimony substantiate tho finding of the commission in that casos The ovidenco
in support of the sub-specifications hercin will be listed in the saro monner os
-in Specification -16, ok ; S e ‘

As to Specification 17a: Specification 1 of Ekhibit 395,

As to Spedifioation 17b: (as amended, R_SSS) Specification 2 of Ex=-

hibit 395,

As to Specificaﬁioh 17c: Spocification 3 of Exhibit 395,
| i 7 N . B '7 =
As to Specification 17d: Specification 4 of Exhibit 395

v
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 Ag to Specifitatien 17e: Speéification 7a’of Exhibit 395,

As*td Speeificatidn 17f; Speclflcatlon 7o of Exhlblt 395,

‘As to Speclflcatlon 18 and sub-Speclflcétions thereunder Not guilty,

finding,

8 o As to 8§ eclflcatlons 19 and 20: On motion of defense, prosecution
submitted a Bill ofégartlculars ocvering these two specifications, This Bill of
Partlculars contalns 201-items and the main proof offered in support thereof arec
military commission orders or. copics of charges and specifications., Whero the ex-
hibits consisted of charges and specifications, this reviewer has made sure that
each finding of guilty was confirmed by subsequent military commission orders.,
For administrative convenionce, the evidence w1l be showm by citing the Bill of
Particulars number and the’ Specification number of the exhibit whereby these mili-
tary comm1551on orders or -charges and speclflcatlons are offered into evidence,

-8

Bill of Partlcular8°

1temﬁ Spec.  Exhibit , Remarks

(1) 4. 318
() -BfEr 318 .
(3) 51 318
(4) 5t 318
(5) 5x 318
(6) . "6y 318
(7). - bz \ 318
(8) . 5dd 318
(9) : sff . 318.
. (10) 511 318
(11) 5111 - = 318 .
. (12)  5mm 318
(13)  Swww 318
(14)  5xxx 318
(15) 56cce 318
(18)  8a 318
(17) 8b 318
(18):  9p 318
(19) - 9c . 318
(20) 3 400a
(21) 8 401 -
(22) 9 401
(23) 7 403
(24) 8 403 )
(25) 9 403
(26) 3 404 :
(27) 5 404 -
(28) 6 . 404 )
S (29) 7 404 T
(30) - 8 - 404 - -
(31) 9 404
(32) 10 404
(33) 5.: - 406
234) 6 406
85) 7 406
(36) - 13 315 -
(37) 15 - 315
(38). - 16 - : 315 o .
o kBa) TR . Tithdrawn (R 989). .
(40). 20 315 a e g
(41) 4 6. - : g

~
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I'bom . Spec. ,Exh_ibit AT ¢ Romorks
(42)' By Ll A302
,(45) B -B05. -
: .:::(44) Aot - -50}27 A iy
fGAB) g 302 “"Not guilty,
~:(46) 10 £ (o) s Not guilty,
(47) .8 2802 : :
(a8) 3 310
(49) .1g : 305
(50)  1g " 305"
(51)  1h 305
:(82) . 1k % 305
.(53) BE : 305
(54) 10 305
(55) "3 808 ;
L 809 : ' A8
(56) 5 306 o4 e
(57) 2 307
(58) . 5 307 :
(59) . -2 . 309 ~
-(60) 3 310 ' s
(1) 5 310
(62) 5 310
(63) 6 310 |
~(64) '8 310
(65) 3 311
(86) - -5 - 311
(81 A 311
- (68) 5 311
(69) B - 311
(70) '.. 5 ; 307
. L =1 312
(72) 4a 357
e by 361
(73) - 4e 357
(74) 4d 357
T e T 360 -
(75)°  4h 357
1 362
(178) 43 357
A 2 361
(77) 41 357
T 361
(78) 4m . 357
iy 359 ’
-(79) 4n i 3BT
‘(80).  None founds - : :
(BT i e N T Not. guilty, -
(BRI - 358 e S B
.283) o g 358
84) 1 - 363 - -
EEB) B 313 :
(86) -6 SB18 e
(88) 1. 396
(89) 2 . 396
(90) ° 4 - 396¢
(91) b2 : 590
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Itom . Spoce. Ethblt QI MRSt L ~* Ronarks

"~ (148) B of Ch 1 ._3655366
- (147) . 3d of Ch 1 385366 . |
-~ (148) 1 of Ch 2' : '365-366 , ' , |
- (149) 1 of Add Ch 365<366 . ,
- (150) . 3a, Add Ch 365366
-~ (151) . 3b, Add Ch .365-366
" (152) . 3o, Add-Ch  365-366
- (183) 4, Add Ch  365-366

- (184) 4, Ch'3 369
;(155)'-'6,;ch;3 369
{166) 7, Ch 3 369
-(157) 10, Ch“3. ~ 369
(158)- 165, Ch 8 - 869 . . .
(159) -Add Sp 1,Ch3 369 ity : . B
-(160) .1, Ch 4 369-370. ‘ Tl '
- (Yel)” g, th 4l 369 <
-(162) - 4,'¢h 4 369370 .-
(168) .-5,Ch 4 369=370
(164) 6, Cha  369-370
(165) 7, Ch 4 369=370
(166) Add Sp 1,Ch4 369 =

(167) Add.Sp 3,Ch4 369-370 g - . ' r
(168)  Add Sp 5,Ch4 369 ' : ’ ‘ N

(169) ‘Add Sp 6,Ch 4 369

(170) Add Sp 9 369

Additional Bill of Particulars:

(1) .. 4p : 357 _ 7 -
SL(aTR) " Stricken (R 67),
oo (173) 3 , 412, 415 ’ :
o (17a) 8 . 412, 415
o ars) 1 0 212, 415
. (176) © 18 . 412, 415
Frrr) 2 412, 415
(178) 28 ‘ 412, 415
(179) 1 414, 415
(x80) 1 413, 415
: Exsl)"'zi 300
: (182) 7 - 300
: (183) 3 392
| (184) 4 392
(185) 4 391
(186) 2 394
- - (187) 3 394
. +(188) - 1 393

Socond Additional Bill of Particulars:

(189). R Strickon (R 1137),
(x90) 2 L4099 L o & ‘
(191) 14 - 349 i

. f192) -7 . 351
~3293) L 8. 351 :
“(194) 10 ‘ 368 .- . - .
SM398) ALy el BB : / '
-%(196) - 18 353 -
< 197) 6 . -3562."
(198) 16 - .- 385 -
. (199) 13 ° 350 E
(200). & 354 , i
(201) 76 - 354
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(92)’7*;4 e 390 : ' )
{98) " “Bar -390 " : '

(9d)/ g ar e o Siglg R L el

toB) " domn e - iiigon :

(96): -1 o R

(B g e 588 = -

(98) it BT Y e THithdrawm (R 990) o

(99)-" . 94 o 0286 Sustains B/P eoxcopt "by 1nfllct1ag col~

loctive punishmopt on thon for offonses

AL SR : of 1ndiv1duqls".
(100620, awih - 816

(101) -~ Speo. - . 31T :
(102), 1 : - REE e
" 108) e s T e aaTs = 2
(T04F 7 B2k 371=372 :
C(X0BY B e - B71a872

- (106)  Nome found,
(o7) ooty e

(108) o 1]
(109) B | AR | | .
(110) 1 - 379 -
. 2 381
(111) = 2 379
~ 3 381
(112) 5 379
(113) 8§ 379
(114) 7 379
(118) 9 379
(116) 12 . 379
(117) 3 380
2118)‘ 5: _ . 380 : , _
AA9) o ' . Wot guilty, vithdrawn (R 990),
"élzo; T 380 ’ bl 8
121). 5 - © 381
(122) 6 381"
(123) 11 381 o : :
(124) i Tithdravm (R 990),
2125; 14 (. 5 ' - ‘
'126) - 16 -~ .381
(327) .18 -381
(128) 19 381
A189)= 2000 B8
(130) =22 . 381
(131) . 23 : - 381
={L80Y: g L 1383
(133) 2 382
(184) 3. . 382"
T 71 (AT S 382
(136) e ottt J1t1draun (R 990),
£137) - 7 . 382 Sustains B/P, ocxcept the words, "while
: : 2, - inadoquately clothod," (R 990)
(138)-"-8 " 382 - - . Tiithdrawm (R 990).
“(139) 9. oo B82 *
(140) 1 331 -
2 S
(de)y. a4y 331~

(143) 1 of Ch-1  365-366
- (144) 2 0f Ch 1 -365~366 -
(145) 3n of Ch 1 365-366'
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- b, For the Défense:

Kunji ‘SUZUKI

In Goneral, PW mattors were handled by the PW Monagement Dgpartmont

- of the War Ministry ond by the PW Information Bureou which was separatc from tho
Wer Ministry but was virtually under its control as the key positions in both or=
ganizations were held by the same personnel (Ex I-1), The War Ministry made the
contracts as to the employment of HFl's by wvarious companies without consulting
‘either accused, These detailed contracts coversd orgenization, ‘Jocation, number
of Fl's, place, type and hours of work and only the War Ministry could cancel such
contracts (Ex G-2), Various bureaus of the War Ministry made plans and issued
regulations, especially as to employment, punishnment and treatwment of Pits, without
consulting the main camp commander who was without authority to amend these regu-
lations (Ex T-1). The area army commander, in this case the commanding general of
the Eastern District Army, hereinafter referred to asg the -EDA, was the chief ad-
ministrator of PW camps of his area, The EDA issued detailed orders for the ac-
tivation ond dewactivation of branch.and dispatch camps, including the appointment

*of” the branch and dispatoh branch commanders and their personnel without consult-

- ing the main camp commander, The EDA also issued orders covering the place, type
and hours of work and assigned individual PW's to specific camps and the main camp .
commonder was without authority te transfer them from.one camp to another within
his area (Ex G=1, G-2, K=3, P),

The War Ministry, consulting only the EDA and the prospective employer

of the Pl's, made detailed decisions whereby the employer constructed the facili- *
ties and the EDA, without consulting the main camp commander, determined whether
the facilitics, in¢luding the barracks, were suitable, Different burcaus of tho
Wor Ministry, without consulting thosc accused, drafted detailed regulations as

to the handling of the PW's, including the Japancse Table of Organization for the
camp and disciplinary and medical matters (Ex G~6, I-1, P, P=1), . The EDA esto-
blished many standing orders for the PW camps and the main camp commonder could
only issue regulations with the approval of the EDA (Ex G-3, Q=-6). As testifiod
to by the ex-Ministér of 1ar, Tojo, duc to the organizational set-up, the main
camp commander wos limited as to what he could accomplish by his own efforts and
could only exercise initiativo in minor details but had the responsibility of kcep-
ing the higher authorities informed of conditions, Officials of tho War Ministry,
the MWIB and officers of the EDA, made constant inspections and their oxercise of
minute control is shown by the dotailed regulations. and the fact that tho EDA tricd
many B's, including Mansficld (Specification 4), for theft (Ex 0, Q=6, Q~=7, S=5),
Tojo stated ho only recoived complaints about food as complaints by the Alliod
Powers concerning tho anbusc of Pi's were sent through the PWIB to the EDA who had

- tho responsibility in thosec matters (Ex H-1)., Tojo further stated that it was hig
‘policy to eliminate corporal punishment not only of PN's but in thc Japancsc Army
itsclf but duc to the custom in tho family and the Army, it was impossiblc as the
Japancse -soldior would rathor be beaten than roceive courts-martial and also bo-
cause the quality of the -Japanese officers and non-coms steadily deteriorated.

. Tojo-also testified he made a surprise inspection at Omori and found that condition
were similar to those in the Japoncse Army and he complimented Suzuki, stating he
was -satisfied with the way Suzuki was running tho camp (Ex 0),

Suzuki, verbally and by posters, instructed the camp personncl at
Omori and the companics where tho PW's worked to rcfrainjffom_administering core
_poral punishmont (Ex €, §-7, S-26, S-27, S-28, S-29, R=55), and after an incident
ocourring at a branch camp was roported to him, hc sont orders forbidding corporal
punishment to all comps under hi's command (Ex D), Suzuki, whilc authorizing col=~
loctive punishment, required all punishments be reported to him ( Ex S=11), Kuri-
- yoml, o Jopanesc interpreter at Omori, stated Suzuki was gentle towards Pi's and
that he never reported to Suzuki the complaints by PW's_conccrning'Watanabgrqs ho -
was afraid Watdnabe would beat him if hé. did, ~ He further stated that despito )
Suzuki's ordoers, he porsonally beat FT's and only reported complaints abou? food tc

z
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~ the Japangso officers at.Omori, Dr. Fujii stated Suzuki did not know that he,
Fujii, boat FT's (Ex D). Suzuki seldom come into direct contact with PW's (Ex
S=29) s ‘Father Ronan, who was at Shinagawa for. a short period-of time, stated
Suzuki was strict but fair ond. although the PW's were treated harshly, thore were
no brutalities,and,punishmentwdeoreascd‘as Suzuki made a sincerc effort to comply
with tho Goneva Convention (Ex S-32, S-33), '

As to Speoification 1: .Not guilty, finding,

i As to Spocification 2: The Cabinet Plamming Board decided to bring
PTts to Japan %o alleviato Gho Iabor shortage in mining, stevedoring, engincering
and construction work (Ex F). The groat percentage of PW's woero suffering from
malaria, dysentery and malnutrition when captured -and were confined in horrible
conditions in the Philippines and mony never received medical carc prior to coming
to Jopon., An Alliod P officer stated thot P officers wore allowed to pick the
Pi's to be shipped to Japan and they picked those in the poorest health and loft
those "in better health in the Philippines (Ex M through M-8), . Japanese policy=~
making outhoritics dosired to ship as mony P's as possiblc and ordered deck load- -
ing, if necessary, be utilized, The PT's were transported under indescribable: con-
ditions in so=called "hell ships". These horriblo conditions woro so prevalont
that the vice-Ministor of War, on 10 Decomber 1942, stoting that mony Pi's bocame
sick or died enroute, sont instructions to lower echelons to select the FT's to
be transported to Japan morc carefully and to provide for provisions, mcdical per-
sonmel, medical supplies and. adequate facilities for their transportation (Ex N
through N-45), PW's arrived in such o debilitated state, only the most modorn
medicine and modical treatment could have curcd them (Ex D-2 and the M scries of
the oxhibits),and such treatment was not available in Japan for oven Japancso
troops as showmi by the U,S, Bombing Survey (Ex E-3). Moany PI's, on arrival in
~ Japan, wore taken directly from the boat to hospitals, including among othors,

- Howard E. Huffino (Bx N-4), Ralph Weinborg (Ex N-4) ond Edo van Spall (Ex Nw-d),
victims mentioned in this specifications Huffinc ond Woinborg arrived in Japan

11 November 1942 and spent an unknowm period of time at o hospital in Osakn and
Huffine; died on 7 January 1943 at tho Tokyo Main Camp, ¥einborg thorcafter was o
patientiat;thQ;Sagamihira Hospital from 27 Decomber 1942 to 16 August 1943 and
dicd at Omeri on: 19 March 1944 (Ex S, N-4), Edo van Spall arrived in Japan on 20
Moy 1943 and was placed in the Okura Army Hospital for an unknovm period of time
and died 22 March 1944 at Omori, Exhibit 262-A-~dcath certificate disclosos that
~ the transfor of management of PIT Huffine odeurrcd on 13 November 1942 but the wit-
ness Makuda, who spoke’ for the custodian of these rocords, tostified transfer of
managemont::did not necessarily moan that Pi's were actually confincd at Omori but
only that.Omori had administrative custody of these PI's (R 801) and he could-not
state from.the death certificates that Fil's werc actually confinod at Omori (R 809),

1

_ Thore was an overall shortago: of food, clothing, medical supplics and
medicine in Japan oand these itoms wore highly rationed and even the ration amount
was ofton not obtainable, Modical porsonncl werc not efficiont by Western stand-
ards ‘and even tho Japancse suffercd from nutritional deficicencics (Ex B through
E~4, E~6--U, S, Strategic Bombing Survey, Ex 0), Medical supplies for branch camps
did not come from Omori but from the nearcst Army hospital (ps 95 ond 96 of Ex X).
The vroabhor in the winters of 1942 and 1943 was extromely adverse, causing the
deaths not only of Fl's but also of a large numbor of Japancse soldicrs (Ex0),

The ration for Japancsc soldiers and Bi's was fixed by the EDA (Ex D) and high
authoritios determined that the Hi's were not to be given the same food as Japmese
soldiers but for ration purposes were classificd in the samo mannor as Japanose
civilian laborors (Ex E-4, E=6, Q=7)» These authoritios also determined that thoe
P officers wéro to be given a reduced rations (Ex E-6)s Food was in short supply
and even thé Jopanese Army units wére instructed' to attempt to be self-subsistent
by raising their”owm food in gardens (Ex E=6). For g :

Tojo tostificd the War Ministby-ne owaro of tho peroontage of deaths
among the Hi's and. the main camp commanders could only request food, clothing,
- heating ond medical supplies but mony of these requests could not be granted, He
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also tcstlflod tho faolllt:.os and barro.clfs 2t Omori Comp wore substontiolly the |
somo_ as those »uppllbd “to tho Jo.p'mose sold:.ers (Ex 0, P).

Suzuk1 ma.de rcpeatod requosts for additional food and medical supplics
and medical personnel but these requests worc in the nain fruitless (Bx D, Q, Q=3),
. Suzukl could not pick his medical personnel or reject those put under his command
but while Suzuki sent many men to the Sagamihira Hospital and Tokyo-#z Army Hos-
pital, ke could only request thoy be hospitalized and did not have +the authority
- to order tho hospitals to receive them or order doctors in other units to treant
PI's. Those hospitals arerc incrensingly hostile to tho reeeipt of PT's. and for -
this roason tho Shinagawa Attached Sickroom wos esbtablished (R 1232, 1265; Ex 0 »Qs
- Q-3)s Lioutonant Bush, Allicd P, statcd drugs were in short supply but he does
not know of any occasion when Dr, Fujii refused to use available supplics and when
he was on sick call, the Pl medical officer was-allowed a froe hand in treating ]
- P's (Ex D-4), Dr. Fujii statod Suzukl did not interfere with the conduct of medie-
cal mwtuurs wnd cncouraged the medical 'section in its efforts and aided them in '
many’ ways, including the . production of yoast for tho.wso of Aits. .(Ex D-1). Pres-
- sure was. pub 0’1 Suzuki by higher authorities to put sick P's to work as soon as

" possible (Bx G, ﬂ-S) but despite this, Dr. Fujii testificd Suzulki never made cxore-
bitant demands to send Pl's to work and although in the beginning, on onc or two
occasions, ho questionod the numbor of sick P 's oxcuscd from work, hoe did not
press the issuc. Dr. Fujii testified ho novoer overruled the P7 modical officer
when he excuscd men from work (Ex D=1, D). In sending medical officers to inspect
- subordinate camps, Suzukl's object was to take carc of the sick and not to get aos
nony mon back €0 vwork as possiblc (Ex D). The camp regulations, providing that
the duty officer would determine whether or not a P was to bo allowed to go on
sick call or required to go to work, worc copied from Japancse Army rcgulatlons

which werce similarly applicablo in the Japancse Army (Bx C),

Dr. Fujii stated spinal injoctions of v1tmm1n B=1 for beri-bori were
uscd in a Japancso Naval Hospital in 1926 and he observed o similar usoc during his
intornship (Ex D-2)., An Allied P stated Dr, Goad's main objection to this treat=
ment was the use of Japanesc ampules (Ex D-4), Another FY7 tostlflod this type of
treatment was used at Sagamihira Hospital (Ex S-21)¢

he Japancse made no effort to conceal their use of moxibustion and
Licutonant Bush, Allied P/, tostified Suzuki was sincere in instituting this troat-
rment which was woll=knowvm in Japon and Lieutonant Bush himself had had it adminis-
~tered to him before tho war and found it offective as a-tomporary moasurc, This -
treatment was cexhibited to the commission by the same civilian who introduced it
into Omori under Suzuki's ordors and the subject of this exporimont testificd in
regard that it was relatively painless (R 1379-1382), This civilian also stated
moxibustion had been used in Japan for mqny conturios (R 33),

: As to Spoc1f1catlon 3: The anount of Red Cross supplics r0001ved
prlor to April 1944 was nogligible whon the number of Fi's arc considered (Ex 388)
and Red Cross supplics for all camps in tho Tokyo area wore sént to Omori for dis-
tribution (Bx C)e.

As to Speeification 4: M Mansfiold was scntonced to three months
confinenont for‘BiOleng and entering to steal food in Fobruary 1944, The rocord
of trial (ps 7 and'8 of Ex A-4) revenls Mansfiold tms givon to stealing and on 10

‘Novembor 1943 was sentenced to ten days solltarj confincment for stealing relicf
goods, - 2 , . ,

As to Specification 5: Secc general discussion as te this accused,
Supra.. . . . !

. ( _ g

As to Spcclflcatlon 6: Sce gonoral evidence and cvidence as to Speci-

flcatlon 2, supra. ' ' ‘ '

i
3

; Nlchlzawu, o sub=branch- connandor in this canp fron November 1942 to
June 1943, testificd Bl's arrived in cvtrcmoly bad health and that he roported this

I
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to Suzuki who dcla.yod the Hi's going to work for one wcel;, son’b o Japanese medical’
office? to visit the camp (R 866), sent additional medical supplies and gave the
canp priority in scnd:mg potients to the hospital., Whon the company employing the
Hits tricd to increasc the working hours, Suzuki backed N:x.chlzmm up in rcfus:mg
to incroaso these hours (R 883-844).

Tokeichi Shisuwa, who bocaro cc\mp commonder on 21 Junc 1943, stated
(Ex R=13) ho was transforred from an infantry company ond does not know why he was
sclected for the job of, damp cormander. Then he took over commond, he found the
camp was only about 807 corplete but facilitics werc gradudlly improved, Then he .
assumcd command, the EDA was supposed to make inspoctions and necossary repairs wut
when the camp was converted into a dispatch comp, the company was responsible for
these repairse On his arrival, lLicutenant Nichizawo told hin o number of Fi's had
died at the camp that provmus wintor as theso P's had come into Japan from a warn
clinmnte and mony of them wore sick upon arrival and ho attributed thoir deaths to
this" fact and to the fact that he was unablo to obtain adequate medicines and medi-
cal supplics from the Amy and even though ho bought modical supplies on the civil-
ion norket, A fowr days after he assumed commimd, Suzuki instructed him that cor-
poral punishment was absolutely prohibited and that the prisomers were to be troato
foirlyes Suzuki also said pationts were to be handled in accordenco with medical
rogulations and those cxcused from heavy labor should be made to do light duty,
while those cxéuscd from training should be resteds Shisuwa further stated at no .
time did he ever rcceivo 1nstruc’clons from Suzuki or. Sakaba that o cortain nunber
of mon were to ke sont to vork nor did he personally fix the percentage of men that
had to go to work, The Japancsc doctor a.nd Bi nedlcal of ficer picked those who
vrere s.blc to. go to work,

-In the' surmer or fall of 1943, rations worc reducod and Suzuki . in-
structed hinm tc get the companies cmploying the BT's to furnish food and to obtam
as ruch supplomo.l’cary food as possible, Heo roquested such food from tho conpany
but vms unable to obtain ‘it either from thom or the Prefectural Governnonte Vihen
the company cmploying the Pi's falled to cooperato on medical matters, Suzuki ore-
dorcd Dre. Tokuda ©to issuc medicines from the nnin camp and also to mako an inspec-
tion and contact the company as to tho situation,  After this negotiation, tho
conpany furnishced additional ncdicine, Shisuwa stated that he doesn't recall any
occasion whon he made requests.that oithor Suzuki or Sakaba evér rcfusod to holp
hin, :

During the winter of 1943 and 1944, 'thI‘u werc no deaths omong the

PiT's ond he belioves this was caused by the fact that the FPl's had become accli-
moted and facilities had been improved as the facilitics, gonerally speaking, were
not inferior to those.furnished in newly formed units of the Japanese Arry. Suzuki
inspoc‘bod the camp three times and never oriticized Shisuwa for not sending enough
prisoners out to work, The camp was always cleaned up before Suzuki arrivod and
Suzuki never spoke to any of the guards or HI's, Suzukl notified him in writing
that he should punish Japanoso porsomncl if they inflicted corporal punishment on
the PT's; that he, Shisuwa, struck Al's: in violation of Suzuki's orders; that he
nevor rcported these violations to Suzulf:. ocven though Suzuki inquired about it,

‘ ) "As. to Speclflco.’clon 7: Soc defenso's goneral ov:.denco and its ovi=-
dence c\s “Bo Speclflco.‘blon 2, -this accuscd, :

e No.k'v.jlma, ca.np cormander of the Mitsushima P77 Camp, testificd as fol-
lows (Ex'R): Codlonol Suzuki stated that the handling of ‘Bi's should be strict but
hunene and fair; that Suzuki told him that the EDA insisted that he roceive the
Fits oven though thoe camp was ill=cquipped at the time of their.arrival; that most
of tho Hi's who diod in his camp died during tho first winter duo to the suddon

chc\ngc in clinnte and the bad conditions under which they were tronsported to Japan; "5

“%that o Dutch doctor,, a Dr. Van Slutin, was the F7 doctor when many of thesc Fi's
dicd and Dr, Tthitfiold was scnt to replace Dr, Van Slutin; that bofore Suzuki's in-
spcc‘blon trips, the conp Wos alwa.ys clcanod up. and that he recoived' cooporation .

’
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from Suzukl when he tried to get hospltallzatlon and medicines for PW'sE thet he
‘was authorized to dismiss several civilians employed by the _camp whose services
were not satlsfactory. ) - ,

K01sh1 Mori, civilian manager of one of the work sites where PV's
from Mitsushima PW. Camp worked, testified (Ex R) Suzuki came to his company two
or three days prior to the arrlval of Pi's and after inspecting the facilities,
he assembled the village offioials, company representatives and branch camp mili-
tary personnel and instructed them the PWis had surrendered but are not consid-
ered criminals and are to be afforded treatment in accordance with the spirit of.
international law, -Corporal punishment was strictly prohibited end if the PW's
did anything wrong, it should be reported to the camp commander who will take
necessary measures, He also instructed that the P's were not to be placed on
dangerous jobs, that their drinking water was to be boiled; that they were not to
be overworked or subJect to ridicule,™ :

i As to Speclflcatlon 8 The senior FI offlcer at Comp 4-B testified

\ix R-3) that he knew the Japanese medical orderly in thé camp altered medical re-
cords forwarded to highor headquarters and that he had been refused permission to .
seo the camp commander by Katayama. He further stated that he never saw the ‘coamp
cymander strike any Pf's in cemp nor did he ever witness hinm observing FiWts bo-
ing mistreated and that in his opinion, the change in climate and the chenge in
diet so weakened the PFV's that they wore susceptible to pnoumonie, beri-beri,
dysentery and diarrhea, He further stated that when hc was ablo to complain to
tae camp commander about beatings, therc was always an immediate improvement and
that conditions improved after Dr., Tujii visited the camp, ‘hen Coloncl Suzuki
visited the camp, a speccial issue of cquipment was madoe to the Fi's as eyocwash
and was withdravm wheon Suzuki left and he doesn't lmow whethor the complaints made
to Shibano werc cver reported to the camp. commander.

Hiroki Kono, interpretor at Camp 4-B, tostificd (Ex R-4) Licutcnont
Oota, camp commonder, issucd instructions that Pil's were not to be beaten; that
he nover complained to Licutenant Oota about the mistroatment of PT Forley and ho
believes Licutenant Oota did not have knowlodze of all the beatings that took placo
in comp and when he reported the Burns. and MeCarthy incident, the camp commander
cautioned the civilian guards concernecd,

. Rokuro Kondo, a Japancse pharmoacist at this camp, stated (Ex R-5) he
wos o pharmacist at the Takada Army Hospital vhich was supposed to supply drugs
ond medicine to Samp 4~B; that drugs worc rationcd ond Camp 4~B did not reccive
the full amount that they vero ohtitled to becausc of the scareity of drugs and
o number ¢f oivilians also died from pnocumonia during tho winter of 1943~1944,

Tadio Shibano, who was scoond in command in Dccombor 1942 to Docomber
1944, testifiod (Ex R=6) he nover sowr comp commonder Oota either beat or mistreat
a-PV or observed such mistrcatment; thot Oota ncver orderced him to boat or mistroat
PV's and he never reported the beatings in vhich he took part,

Shlgegl Ino, modical officor of the Takade Iospital, testificd (Ex R-8)
he acted as visiting doctor to Camp 4=B and did not know of any instructions ro-
quiring o certain quota of PW's to be sent to work. He also stated that in the
beginning he visited the camp oncc a week but became so busy that ho could not go
that often thereafter, :

_ Hisakichi Tokuda, senior medical officer of the Tokyo Main Coamp, tos-
tified (Ex R=9) it was the EDA who docided branch ocmps would only havo a visit-
irig ‘doctor and the Var Ministry decided to usc BT medics in the samoc way os Japun-
cse modical officers and that the numbor of- Japoncse medical porsonncl used in
BT comps would be as small as posslble. He also statod he made visits and inspcc-
- tions of this camp on threce differont occasions and it was Suzuki's policy to e

safeguard as much as poss1blc the phy31cw1 welfarc of tho Hl's and to provent tham»
from becoming sick, . ‘
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Norumi Oota, camp commande at Camp 4—B, stated (Ex R-lO) Suzuki

" neverordored him to send more men out to work but cautioned him to put light

duty patients on light duty., He furthor statoed he never madc oany reports of
beatings to Coloriel Suzuki, S

. As to. Specxf‘ma‘uon 9. Dr Fqul ‘testified that ho visited Niigata -
Camp 5~B in December 1943, pursuant to Suzuki!ls ordcrs, who instructed him to cut
dovm the number of deaths and the number ox sick FW's by trefxtlng "the causes be-’
hind it".

- W

S Captain’ Boone, Alliecd BW, who was confined at Camp 5-B, Niigata,
testlfled (Ex R=14) PW's often. ensraged in trading wearing apparel ond cigarettes
for food -and this trading had injurious offects on, thoir health, Major Fellows,

" - genior PW offi icer, punished PW's within tho comp by depriving them of rations

upon certain .occasions, .. During the winter of 194:3-1944 everything in Japan had
become scarce and shoes werc a difficult item to procure for the Pi's, He also
stated -after Lieutenant Yoshida was rolicved as _camp -¢ommonder, beatings and mis-
treatment of Pl's were reduced to practically zero; whenever inspections werec
made, the camp and PW's wore so propared. and instructed 'bh'vb the inspecting offi-
cers did not get a true plc’cu.ro of conditions, - 07% :

" Prederick Zaldmm, Allied P‘T stated (BEx R=15) he and mony other Hi's
experw enceddifficulties with Major Stewart Allied HT modical offlcer, when at-
tempting to be exeused from work, as Major Stowart 3.{0.0 a weok c¢haracter who showcd
favoritism and often allowed his ordsrlics to gonduet sick: call and sent sick
Hi's out to work; it was .common lmowledge the officers received more rations than

. the men ag the officers' batmen bartered excess food for.the officcrs! mess for ‘
cigarettes, Red Cross food parcels were distributed fairly well on two occasions
but on the third occasion, the officers rcceived o larger portion than the monj;
that when he became sick and could not go to work, Major Fellows thought he was
faking and threw him down on his back and started to choke him and beat him with
his fists in the head, face and body; that the second camp commander, Lieutenant
Nemoto, was "the whitest Jap I ever seon" and the third camp commander only slap-
ped men who had violated regulations; that Sergeant Faulkmer, who was the mess
sergeant, pushed P's around and traded food for cigarettes,

William H, Gagne, Allied P¥, stated (Ex R-16) HMajor Fellows boat
Zaidmen for refusing to go to work, even though Zaidman protested he was too sick
to work; that some men received preferential treatment from Major "Stovrart on sick
call and the BT officers obtained more ;ood than the PW onlisted personnel, BY
Wilfric J. McDowell was turned over to the Japanese by Major Fellows for.stealing
food to supplement his diet; that he heard Major Stewart was responsible for the
death of Bottie; that Sergeant Faulkner, who was the mcss sergeont, traded rations -
“with PM's who wero required to turn over to him any future Red Cross parcels they
.received, He also said he heard that PW's boat. Titman and that Major Fellows
turned Titman over to the Japanaese,

Joseph Tolozuk, Alliod P, stated (Ex R-18) many PW's foigned :Lllncss.
some because they had mentally given up and others who pretended to be i1ll if thcy
- werc placed on the sick list by the P's medical sergeant. He also stated he re-
celved & beating from W Faulkner, :

Francis B, Gallagher, Allied P/, stated (Ex R-19) he received adequate
rest from the medical orderly after he was injured at work and was then placed on
~light duty for approximately a month ond o half, He alsp stated Major Stewart re-
fused to further excuse him from work, . stating the Jq.pa.nose authorities had ordered

a certain- percentage of ersoners be sent to work cach day. ’

}

e My George Francis, Allied IW, was P‘T officers? orderly and - he stated
(Ex R—ZO) that P officers did not receive any more food thon the P enlisted per=-
sommel and that when complaints worc rcceived when he distributed the extra food )
from the officers' mess to other Pi's, Major Féllows dlscontlnued glvn.ng a.nyone the .
- extra food gnd returned it to the- kl‘tchon. , '
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Lt, Coloncl Fellows, formerly MaJOI' Fellows, Amerlozm "Pi7, stated
-(Ex R- 25) as follows: On or about 10 January 1944, PT Titman stole some food
from a civilion workman,  The: Japmese commander told him no food would be is-
-sued until the oculprit would be found, He notified the P¥F officers and NCO's
of the situation, P NCO's beat Titmon and ‘brought him to Fellows who surren-
dered- him to the Japa,nese officers, Titman was confined and while in confince~
nent escaped and was recaptured. He was released on 26 Jonuary 1944 and re-
‘commenced his trouble-making and thefts, He was beaten by PW's and stated he
intended to escape. Lt. Colonel Fellows reported this to the Japanese, request-
' mg thot he be confincd and he was confined until his denth on 9 February 1944,

i

A United S tates Llcutemmt from the branch camp brought over PV Mor-
timer and requiested he be confined because he stole food from his fellow Pi's
(Ex R-24), Lt, Colonel Fellows rclayed this Lieutenant's request ond Mortimer
was conflned in thc Jo.po.nese guard house and led o short time after his releasc,
g It. Coloncl Fellows, American PV, stated (Ex R- 25) as follows:
Licutondnt Nemoto, who relicved Yoshida, did much to roliéve the working and
living ‘conditions within tho camps -

A ‘bel_egra:m from the International Red Cross (Ex R=26), basod on an
interview with Lt, Coloncl Follows, reported Lt, Colonel Fellows stated the situ-
ation was as good as could be oxpected for the last two years; that-they wore ine
provn.nn- as thc health conditions were considerably improved and there were no
serious illnesscs; that the prisoners had bocome acclimated ond their weights had
‘increascd between five to six kilos, although mail service was poor,

: Exhibits R-28 and R-29 are death cortificates for PI's Titmon and
Mortimer. These certificates, which werc forwarded to the main camp, showod that
these men died as a result of beri=beri and nothing in them indicates that theso
prisoners ‘had dlod as a result of mistreatmont,

_ Fu. io Nemoto, who succccded Yoshida and was woll-likod by the Fi's,
stated (Ex R —309 he was told by Suzuki that this camp was in vory poor medical
circumstances and to take special care to diunprove its conditions. He was also
told to treat the A's with benevolence and fairncss, '

As ‘to Spocifica‘tion 10: Sce Spccifications 6, ‘77 8 and 9,

-~ As to SpGCIflC"L'blon 11: I‘I’.LChlJl Ishlgo, camp commonder of Kmmsakl
Br'\nch Comp 57, lator Imown as Dispatch Camp 755, stated (Ex R-11l, scc Bill of Par-
ticulars, 88- through 97) that throc F's died immodiately after their arrival in
Jopan and therc werc only ono or two deaths during the first winter., . He did not
lmow that McEwen, vhoso death was attributed to moxibustion, had ever been given
This treatmont, Suzuki never insisted that a certain quota of prlsonors would ‘be
sent ‘out to work each day nor did he reprimand him because too many prisoncrs were
in camps However, Suzuki did request that light duty be given to light duty men,
Suzuki cxpressly p'rohibi‘b_ed. corporal punishment and he, Ishige, never roportcd_

to the main camp thot any PV was ever mistreated., During the trial he learned'-
‘thore were soveral cases of misbreatment but this was his and not Suzuki's respon-
sibility and it arose out of the custom in the Japancse family and Army. Moxi-
bustion troatmont for beri~bori patients was discontinued aftor the P medical
officor stated that the prisoners didn't approve of it, Ho also stated ho had
‘o great ‘deal of trouble resulting from stealing. by the PT's, It was very diffi-
cult for him to hospitalize prisoncrs in the ‘Japanese Army hospitals and Suzuki's
cfforts in cstablishing the Shinagowa Attached Sickroom proved of great benefit

to the Fi's.  After the Shinagawa Hospital was established,- he could hospitalize

a patiert simply by picking up the telephond and telllng hoqdquarters he was sond~
:Lng o PT to the hosp:.tal :

Shlgeru Nemoto s who wos the .branch dlfector of the company wherc thq
Pl's from D:Lsp'vbch C'mp 5 were omployed, stated (Ex R=12) Suzulq. mspec’ced the

. (p 86 of 101, So.lfa.bo. et 1, Case Noe 305)
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work site soon aftor the prisoners were -assigned and criticized and left ordors to
Improve the. following: entertainment facilitics for the Fit's, improvement of quar-
ters by.estoblishing stoves, improve sonitation in the bath. roons, have the com-
pany doctor go to the camp #ore ofton and the PIM's should not work ot night and -
should not work-at o place that would endanger their woll=boing, As a result of
these criticisms and reoommgndations, inprovements as recormended were nade,

' . Shigeru 'Ilumajixﬁg,. camp coimander at Ashio PV Camp from Noveoumber 1943
through April 1944, stated (¥x R-32) before assuming command he wont to Omori

to sco Suzulki, vho accompanibd him to Ashio, Suzuki told him to mointain the dige
nity of the Impcrial Army, eliminate corporal punishment dand improve sanitation.
At Ashio, Suzuki called the officials of the conpanics wherein the Pi's were go=-
ing to work and explained to thom that the PI' s wore to bo treated fairly and not .
improperly worked, He also told them tho canp was rosponsible for the adminigbro-
tion.and punishment of Pi's and tho companies should not attompt to punish then
in any way but report irregularitiocs in the camp, He also requested the company
officials to do as rmuch as they could to procurc supplomentary food for the Pi's,
There wero about 250 Hi's at Ashio during Suzuki's tino,'60% of thom being In-
donosian soldicrs. Vhon the Fi's arrived, they were not vory strong physically
and were given ton to fourtoon days rest beforo thoy were sont to work, The com~ -
pany doctor came to the camp about ovory other day and when at camp decided who
wos able to work but only aftor consulting with the Duteh doctor. The ‘Conpany
furnished nodicines ond vitamin pills, He always rocoived the staple food he ro-
questod but despite all his offorts, both through”Arny ond civilian channels, tho
supplomentary food was many times insufficiont, During the winter of 1943-1944,
there was a pneumonia cpidemic at the canp. . Those showing any signs. of pneuionia
werc confined to the sick room which was enlarged and the company doctor camec to
treat the patients every day. Vhon Suzuki heard of this epidemic, hc scnt Dr,
Fujii from the mnin comp., Dr. Fujii was very helpful and never made any attompt
to get any men out to work, Suzuki never reprimanded him for having too many men
absent from work. Although twenty Fil's died as a result of this opidemic, hec be-
lioved it was due to thoe fact that these prisoners came from o worm tropical cli-
nate and could not adjust themseclves to Japan, Licutenant Maas, Dutch BV doctor,
confimed this and stated the pure Dutch could resist this climote much botter
thon tho Indonesians, '

s, Wing Cormander Birchall, who was confined at tho Yokohnmo Ball Park
PI Camp, stated (Ex R-36) Suzuki ordered no slapping of Fi's. He also statod tho
- food shortage was so bad in Japan, he saw onc Japanese officer stealing picces of
moat out of another's lunch box when the other Japonesc was not looking; that whon

Pl's conplained about the food, one of the PT cooks told -then thoy could give a
full ration if the Fi's would quit stealing food, He also stated tho P staff at
the hospital, such as cooks and doctors, werc only out te help themselves and not

the other PAl's, - , :

‘ Koichi Kushida, who was diroctor of a company where Fi's from tho
Yokohana PW Camp worked, stated (Ex R-38) Suzuli said unless thoy abided by P
comp rogulations on such matters as food, labor, prohibition of corporal punishmont
of Fii's, he would not supply Pi's to tho company as laborers. In March 1944, he
" was presont whon Suzuki came to the camp to make an inspection, From his conduct
during the inspection, ho thought Suzuki's troatuont of Pi's was very humanitarian,

Charles Re Finn, civilian Amorican P, who was imprisoned at Tokyo
- A7 Comp #3=D, stated (Ex R-50) by conparison Pi's rcceived the best troatment at
this camp than at any obher camp and he had written a lotter to Licutenont Uwamori,
the cormonder, thanking him for his attempts to treat PU's with as much considora-
tion as possiblc, He also stated in ordor to supplement the meager nedical sup= s
plios, Uwanori periodically canvasscd drug storos in the arca to obtain sulfa drugs
ond disinfectants, He also statod any beatings that took place in this camp werc
initiated and adninistered during tho absence of Uwanori, g =
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Licutenant Reid, nedi cal B offlcer, coni‘lrncd Licutenant Fiun's
stﬂteneml;s and also stated (Ex R=51) Uwanori allowed prisoncrs to purchasc condi-
nents to flavor their food and also brought such itoems into the camp himsclf, He
left it up to Licutenant Reid as to which prisoners would go to work ond told hin
" tho minimun figurc of vorkmon that they could get away with, despito continual

pressurc from Army headquarters and from the civilian officials to incrcasc the
sizo of work parties, .On one occasion, during an opidenic of influenza, Licuton-
- ant Uvwanori, on his recommendatlon, declared a throo day holldo.y for tho wholc
campe He continually cooperated in the P 's offorts to oquip thoir corp hospital
and closed his eyos to the ropoated stealing of fucl at the work placo for use in
the camp hospital stove, On ono occasion, when tho company was pressing thon for
an’ increased labor force, ho, Liocubonant Reid,; throatoned to refuse to act as doc=
tor if ho werc forced to sond these men to work and - Licutenant Uwanori accededt o
his domands, On another occasion, Uwanori told him he did not have to conply with
the order of an mspoc‘blng colonel to incroaso the sizo of the work party, On
soveral,occasions, in disciplinary mattors, Uwamori took .the word of Pi's ovor that
of Japanesc and when the mon did got in troublo, allowod (thom a decent chance to
plead their cases, Aftor tho Baraskawich boating, Licutonant Reid wrote a letter
to Uwanori, saying the punlsh.nont given out was an exomple of sadisn and requosted.-
no punishment be meted out by Japanesc underlings until the casc had beon heard by
' Licutenant Uwomori, = Lioutenant Uwomori consurod tho porpetrators of the beating
ond ordered them to apologize to hinm and also ordorod no futuro beatings until he,
Utrariori, or his second in cormond, had heard the case, This rosultod in tho al-
nost conplcte aoolltlon of physical pudishient within the campe

Ca.ptun Baword Ve Dockviciler, Us Se \Tmral Off]_CCI', stated (E,c Ra52)
ho and Ensign Pollak were. traonsferred to Camp 3-D in Yokohama in Doecombor 1943 to
work as cngincers in the Nippon~Kokan Shipyards, T/hon Licutenant Uwanori inforred
then they were to act in tho capacity of naval ongincors, both Pollak and hinself
stated they would not comply with theso ordors, Highor hcadquwrtors dirccted they

~would but Uvanori allowed then to go through tho rotionse

He furt her statod Both Uwanor:. and his 1nterprotor Koy’xgl went out of
thelr way to obtain medicines in the black market with funds supplicd by the P
and they ncver insisted that o sick man should work, In his opinion, Lloutonant
Uwanori sincerely did his best to trecat them as human beings, Thon nembers of his
staff treated the Fi's crueclly and it wms reported to Uwamori, he took corrcetive
neasurcs to sec that these individuals wore curbed. To Captain Docliroiler!s
knowledgo, Lieu’ceno.nt Uwanori nover beat or otherwisc abuscd Pl's,

Orville Stanford Ancrlcﬁ.n P7, confined at a Yokohiwia P7 Camp con~
nanded by Licutcnant Uwamoris stated (Ex R=53) he discusscd such nattors as food,
nedication, sanitation and working conditions of +the men with Licutenant Uwanmori,
who was cooperative and considerato, Licutenant Uvanori vos, without doubt, norc
‘Turione ond considerate than any other Japancse officor in charge of o PT canp.
Lioutenant Uwomori insisted -sick prisoncrs slould not worl' oend tricd to do cvery-.
thing he could to alloviate conditions of the prisoners. vhon BT Davis was beaton
for broaking out of camp and looting food stores, Llour,cn:mu Uvrariori vras in corie
mond of Camp 10=D but was not present at the time and Sergeant Tanoka kept the on=
‘tire nattor sccret from him, Becausc this man would be more sevoroly punished if
it were rcported,. the Davis mcldent was not roported to Licutenont Uvraziori,

: - Licutenant Masao Uwanori, who was concurrontly cormandont of BT Camps
5-D 10-D and 11-D, stated (BEx R-54) Suzuki instructed him the P's should be
treated fairly in accordance with-intornational law and corporal punishment should
not be administered to then under any clrcumstancos.

o5 RCR
In 1943, w’c Licutenont Hayashl's cfmp, Scrgeant Ushoda boat a P. of=-
ficer and Suzuki severely reprinoanded Liocutenant quo.sh:. and puiished Ushoda, He
~then sent instructions to all branch and dispatch canp cormenders forbidding the
use of corporal punishment, He'ordered thom to give tho P.'s as much additional.
£ood 'md clothing as poss:.blo and stated undor no -circunstances would smL Pi's be

= {
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allowed to worke He also ordercd the Fi's working conditions bo' alleviated by .

- prolonging their rest hours énd putting thom on jobs according to their tochnical
skill and physical condition. Ho sccurcd an oxtonsion of the lunch hour at the
Tsurmri Shipyard from 30 to' 50 minutes, Suzuki stated specinl attention should be
given to medical troatmont and Hospitalization of Bl's and he reprimandcd Lioutens-
ont Hoyashi for not utilizing a Rod Cross hospitnl when o ptonaine poison incident
occurrced, Suguki orderod posters be placed in :every room of the Administration
Building, stating Pi's should not be mistreatod and their health should bo main-
tained, v ' x P ‘

e The companies cmploying the Pi's wére only intercsted in their cco=-
nonic value as laborers and refusod to: supply medicines to such on extent that
Uwanori had to obtain thom from black market sources with BT funds,

8. . At o nooting of* all main comp commanders in Tokyo under tho auspices
of the, Prisoner of Tiar Information Burpgu, Colonol Suzuki stated to Major Goneral

Yomo ji of the EDA and Major Genoral Homade of the Prisonoer of War Infornation’

Burcau that the Fi's were in bad hoalth becousc of tho bhd quality and quantity of

food; that in spite of this, highor authoritics obstinately urged camp cormandors -
to incroose the size of tho work partics and improve tho offioioncy of the Fi's,

Suzuki stated this wns o contradiction and unless additional food was issuod, the
- camp commondors would have no alternatiyo but to alloviate tho working conditions
in order that the Pi's night maintain thoir physical strongth, Immediately aftor
this conference, the ration was incroased by order of thc EDA, -

As official of o cerpony omploying Pi's from Licutonant Utranori's
canps, stated (Ex R=-565) Suzuki told the chicf officials of the company they rust
supply cxtra food and clothing for the Fi'; that thero would be no corporal pun-
ishnent of Fi's; and that they should bo assigned to jobs suitablc to thon and
gavo other instructions designod to protect the health and wolfare of the Fi's,
In the swimer of. 1943, duc to siclmess among the Fiits, Suzuki docroased tho work-
ing time by two hours,

An official of the Tsurumi Shipyards, cmploying Fi's from the.sario
canps, statod (Ex R=-56) Suzuki roquestod that the lunch poeriod for prisoners be
prolonged from 30 to 50 minutes ond this roquest was compliod with, Ho also stated
when the Fif's first arrived, the company was informod that as they were in a woak=-
oned condition, they could not be put to work irmediatoly, |

g Kuningi Suda, o member of the staff of Branch Camp 71-B, Kawasoki,
stated (Ex R=59) the camp cormondor wos.Liocutonant Tokouchi, who was succeceded by
Lieutonant Erori, Both of these officers instructed them to treat the prisonors
foirly and enphasized no corporal punishment bo dealt out to Fi's, Colonel Suzuki
visited tho camp and emphasized all efforts should be made to prevont tho Pits -
from beconing sick,

‘ . -An official of tho Kawasoki Stevedoring Compeny, omploying prisoncrs
from Kawasaki P Camp 32, stated (Ex R-62) Lioutonant ifashina, tho branch com-
nondant, instructed them Pi's would not be allowed to work on dangerous jobs,

" would only work in tho schoduled hours and would be providod with adoquato rest,

He also said thoy should be provided with a rest roon and additional food whencver
possiblo and strictly prohibited corporal punishmont, Ho also statod sick PT's

~ wore not to be worked and were to be troated in the same nonner as Japancse workors,

Konome SAKABA

- 55 .In Genoral, The general dofonsc ovidence as to Sujzuki (supra) is
oqually applicable to Sakaba, especially that ovidence showing the detailed con=
~ trol by higher authorities as to organigzation, personncl, facilitics, linited
. powors of initiative and pressurc from higher authorities. = Scc also Exhibits Js - -
K-1, P, Q=8, It might be noted that Sckaba roquostoed inspection by the EDA so that
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they could observe conditions (Ex U<18), and that the EDA decided how soon after
arrival prisoners would be put to work (Ex K-2), All inspections by the Medigal
Intendance and the Military Affairs Departments of the EDA resulted in favora%lo
roports of P conditions (Ex Q-8), Sakaba put out training rogulations instruct-
ing his subordinates to treat’ the FW's properly and forbidding corporal punish-
ment (Ex S~12) and instructed subordinates and employers of the PW's not to ad-
minister corporal punishment and asked the cmployers to furnish adequate facili-
ties (Ex R-31, R-37, S~13, S=25, $-42, S=43),

- - Sakeba. had no powor to transfer personnol who mistreated PW's., His

- rgquest to have Watanabe sent back to his original unit was refused by the EDA
(Ex S=42, U=16), Sakaba's request to transfer a NCO who was rough on prisoners
ond to dismiss an officér who used camp matericls for his own usc was acted upon

. favorably by the EDA (Ex Q<4), "Mony PiT's stated that living conditions werc sue

- perior and thoy wore treated better in. the camps in the Tokyo sres than they were
-in the cdmps of* other arcas and that they nover saw Sakaba administer or witness
mistreatment of P's (Ex S=34, S=35, 8§37, S~38, S~394 -8=43, U), An interpreter
at Omori stated. that treatmont there was better than in the Osaka AW camps and
that Salkaba told the P7's they could complain to him but they never did (Ex S-26).
Dr, Fujii testified that he did not believe Sakaba lmew Wetanobe wos using tho
latrine detail to punish officers (Ex D=l1). ' :

A Swiss Legation member, in February 1945, in his interrogations, -
disclosed that Commander Mayer, sénior PW officer, stated that although there was
overcrowding, the administration, in general, ‘was "highly favorable and satis-
factory" and "We have no cémplaints whatsoever, Thoy treated us fair, conditions
have improved a lot lately," He also stated that while conditions were not _
necessarily bad before, the "treatment has become very fair since 2nd Licutenant
Sano and two or threc othor personncl came here, We are all grateful, Ve really

- have no complaints and are plecased with the situation," The Swiss _delegate con-
curred with Sakaba's statomont that "I feel fully confident in saying that they
(PWts) have beon .given just.treatment," (Ex S-45), - . s g

. The pressure that Sakaba wassubject to was shown by such things as the .

P Information Bureau's monthly .reports, In October 1944, the report stated that
tho employors of P's were protesting the kind troatment of BI's and that he
should notify the Bureau if he had taken any measurcs to cope with the situation, |,
The report of May 1945 stated that concorning the handling of petitions submitted
by P7's that "Although the handling of petitions submitted by PsW may vary with
the various intornment comps, those petitions, from the very beginning, have merely
becn o declaration of complaints of the PsT or the insignificant argumentative
theories of those PsW who werd influenced by others, The food situation at the
present time is in such a pressing state as to cause difficulties in acquiring
morchendise, Not only is it difficult to provide enough supplies to maintain tho
health of the PsW, but the hostile feeling of the people has bocome incroasingly
greater due to tho continuous rain of atrocious and indiscriminate bombings by

. B-29'se Thoe situation is such that it is feared harm will be inflicted upon the

- 'PsT if motters are left standing. But in spite of the fact the camp staff ex-
erted every possible offort in giving the Ps7 fair trcatmont, the PsW arc not
grateful but take the liberty of making requests at every opportunitys Their be-

~ lief thot. this is only their natural right must be said to be an expression of the
extrome individualism and authoritativeness of Europeans and Americens, Further=-
more, as their tendencics toward assuming such an atbitude is gradually becoming
groator, it is nocessary that those engaged in the management of Psi be very carc-
ful so as not to be taken adventage of 'in the least by thom,

: . "This bureau belicves that the requests of the PsW are, in view of
tho present circumstances, a form of discontent and protest directed at manage=-
- ment and handling, and is of the opinion that none of their requests should be '
fulfillod, It is particular}y desired that such activities as organizing P re=~
presentatives for purposes of presenting requests be abolished at this time, -
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: "In connection with this matter, we wish to remind you onco again
that wehare not obligated to fulfill the treaty governing the treatment of Psi."
( : ). . Tho Thought Police Report, sent to the Home Minister by the Govornor
of Tochigi Prefocture (Niigate camps), shows that. tovmspecople and civilian em-
ployces resonted the -fact that the PI's received better food thon tho civilians,
were given priority on receiving TB inoculations and at the general lenient treat-
ment of Fi's, The company officials and the civilion workmen protested that the
P7's showed contempt for the Korean and Japanese civilion workers and nothing
could be done with them as they were forbidden to administer corporal punishment -
and the P guards took no action, This report further stated that tho PV camp
comm?ﬁdcr'S'leniont attitude towards PT's is only due to orders from Sakaba (Ex -
R=8l)e - -~ o g1 '

« -~ _As to Specification 1: " Not guilty,

8 - As to Specification 2: The general defensd evidence summarized under
Specification-2 of Suzuki” is equally applicable to Sakaba, In addition to the
exhibits cited thereunder, see Exhibits J, K, ps 21 to 26, 38 to 41 and p 48 of
Ex K-1, K-2, S-6, S-44, U=~18), T '

Sakaba also made various futile requests for additional medicinos and
medical attendance and guard persommnel (Ex X, pg 14 to 23, 26, 54 of K-1, K-2, P,
Q-4, U~18), ‘A shortage of medical personnel during Salmba's. time is indicated by
he fact that in May 1944, the Morioka Army Hospital informed Sakabo that due to
the shortage of persomnel, medical officers could only visit branch camps twice a
month (Ex K~1), : '

The shortage of food and other necessities increased during Sakaba's
tenure of officc as shovm by the fact that the Japanese Army, especially the new
recruits, had a large incidence of men suffering from TB and severe malnutrition
and that as a result of this thore vms a gradual breakdovm of discipline (L series
of exhibits), - Salkaba made repeated requests for additional food and complained
to higher headquarters that the P camps were not even receiving their allotted
ration (Ex Q-4). Sakaba never personally docreased rations (Ex D-1), PT's testi-
fied that the food, medical treatment and working and living conditions in the BT
comps under Sakaba's control were superior to that roccived by Bi's at other camps
(Bx §+36, 5~37, S=-38, $-39, U, Us24, U-25), Majors lucia and Frankcom stated that
the élderly and convalescent Pi's were given sedentary occupations at Omori whereas
they were roquired to do heavy manual labor at other camps (Ex 8-35, S-36), Sakaba
nover coused sick Pi's to be sent out to work (Ex D-1), Lieutenant Bush stated :
That in 1944 medical supplies wore so scarce that the Japancse roquested the Fi's
to save the cellophane from their cigarettes to be used as medical dressings,

- Lieutenont Bush further stated that he kmew of no instance where Dr. Majii refused
to. use available medical supplies for the treatment of Pii's and that.when ho was -
on sick call, Dr, Fujii seemed to give Dr, Goad o pretty free hand, He also stated
that moxibustion was not used under Sakaba (EX‘D-4).‘ The vice Viar Minister, from
August 1944 to July 1945,. stated that duc to the dire shortage of medical supplics,
. stock piles of medicines of certain P camps could not all be used immediately be=-
cause they could not be replaced (Ex S-44), A Swiss Legation Staff Momber visited
Omori and Shinagowm in February 1945 and his . interrogations (Ex S-45) disclosed:

, (1) That Petty Officer Thomas stated that PI's were receiving an ade-
quate amount of food but complained about not petting cnough meats and fats,

: (2) Major Berry, PT medical officer, stated the prisoners were got=
ting encugh calories though meat was quite scarce and although nourishment was not
rich, the prisoners did not have to worry about losing woight.. He also stated
- he was grateful that soy beans werc included in the PW*s monus and ‘as they were

getting enough fish, mcat was pot absolutcly essential, .

F o (p QO'Of 101, Sakaba et 1, Qaée.Ho.»%d%)
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ety The Swiss delogate stﬂtod he didn't think anythlng -could bo done

_about ~the mcat situation,s Major Berry also stated that two B modical officers
worked one-half day each and medical examinations wore made every evening and re-
ported to the Jopanese medical NCO; that those prisoners requiring hospltalnza-,.
tion were sent to Shinagawm and the physical oxaminations were highly satisfac=-
tory, especially of lato, Major Berry further stated that the Pi's had an ade-

- quate supply of general drugs and equipment and everything that could be done for
 beri-beri paticnts was being donc; that beri~beri cases originated in the South-
Pacific and this.disease could not be cured in a few doys no ‘matter what type of
medicine was-used, - Major Berry complained that mony modical soldiers were work-
ing in other jobs becouse they had lost their identificntion papers ond he re-

- quested the Red Cross to clear up the situation and furnish them with such iden-~

tification as soon as possible, At Shinagawa, Dr. Gottlieb stated that amoebic
dysentery cases had greatly decreased as hardly ony cases broke out in Japan and
the dlsease wa.s brought from the Philippines and Hongkong.

As to Speclflcatlon 3 Not guilty, o

As to Specification 4: Iaeutenant Sano ond Sakaba, in. discussing the
mall situation in February 1945 with a Swiss Logation staff member, stated the .
rogulations as to mail werc complied with and the PT's were permittod to write
one or two postcards a month and there vwas not a BT who had not received mail,e
Commonder Mayer, on this occasion, said they were roceiving their mail bt the
out-going mail dld not seén to bo going smoothly (Ex S-45), :

As to Spec*flcatlons 5 and 6: Surlcken,-defense.motion (r 60).

- As to Speclflcatlon 7: In answer to the protests of the United States
"throuﬂh diplomatic chammels, the Japonese Government, beginning in 1942, continu-
~ ally stated that they did not intend to treat aircrew members who engaged in in-
discriminato bombing as Pil's and did not intend to divulge . the nomes of thesc crew
members when they were captured or the sentonces imposed upon them (Ex U-4, S-44),
In conformity with this, the "Special Prisoners" at Omori wore not considered Pi's
and were. not administrativedy handled as such, They were not issucd identifica~-
tion cards by the HV Information Bureau or reported to the Geneva Red Cross as in
the case of ordinary Fi's and the customary death cortificate was not made out
when HT Gill died. Sakaba was instructed not to include the "Special Prisoners"
in arriving at the fixed total strength of PI's at Omori (Ex D-1, ps 12 and 13 of
P, S-44, U=-18), Duec to propaganda by the Japanese ‘Government and the’ enormous
nunbor of civilians killed and homes damaged in the bomblngs of urban areas, tho
Japaneso people had a burhing hatred for B-~29 fliers (Ex U-1l, U~6, U=7), The at-
titude of -higher authoritics is shown by the number of flicrs exescuted in the
Eastern, Central and the Vestern District Armies, Most of these fliors worc exe-
cuted without trial, evon after the Emperor had announced the surrender, Genoral
Okido, Military Pollce Cormandant, with the encouragemont of Lt., Genoral Tomura of
the P Information Bureau, instructed the Army commandors to quickly try captured
fliers and "If it is impossible to make immediato dlsp051tlon by courts-marticl,
perhaps other methods moy unavoidably be used." (Ex U-1l, U-3, U-8, U-9, U-10, U-11,
U-12, U=13, U-14, U-15), . Various district Army commandors dotermined vhen the
‘ fliers were to be exccuted and the "Spocial Prisoners" at Omori wero lucky to bo
alive ‘as the fliers in Osaka, Nagoya ond Fukuoka worc oxccuted, Genocral Tanaka
of the EDA did not think these exccutions were legal and with the assistance of
Sakaba provented tho "Spocial Prigsoners" at Omori from being executed by the sub-
terfuge of having them continually- questioned by the staff members of the EDA to
' indicatc it was necessary to keep them alive to gain information and to quiet sus-
,plclon that the EDA was 1gnor1ng ordors to execute thc B=29 fllcrs (Ex P, U-19).

Deallngs between higher hemdquarters and Sakaba 1n.relat10n to
"Special Prisoners" were corried out in o secret manner and. the Chief of the F7
~ Administration Department of the Var Mlnlstry issued private instructions to
Sakaba, - Dr, Fujii belioved that Salkoba;. in his actions; roeflected the genocral at-
tltude of. hlgher cormands and there was no»hlng in his monner to 1ndlcate that

< (p 79‘1 of - 101, Sokaba ot 1, Case No. 305)
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Sakaba bore the "Special Prisoners" ony special malice (Ex D=1, K-1). Salkaba
objocted to the confinement of "Special Prisoners" at Omori because keeping them
apart from the regular prisoners was difficult and asked the sonior officer of
the BV Monagement Department of the War Ministry as to their status and futuro
disposition, = Sakaba was told that their status was indefinite as some night be
exocuted as war criminals (Ex P),

The Ijar Minimtry ordered that "Special Prismners" bo confined sep=.
arately and the district armies had the duty of providing rations and food
(Ex Se44, U~17, U=18), Dr, Fujii stated that the requisition for modicines made
by the Omori Camp .was based on the number of regular prisoners and did not rce
flect the true strength so that no additional medicines wero received because
of the presence of "Special Prisoners", He. also stated that he believed thatl
Red Cross olothing was distributed o "Spécial Prismers" (Ex D-1). The Japanese
medical sergeant on duty at Omori from January 1944 to August 1945 statod the
BT moss’'officer took charge of -distributing food to the M\Speeial Prisoners" and
he heard of no order to the effect that "Special Prisoners® were only to receive
. half rations. He further stated that os he issued the basic foods, he:would.
have known if any such order had been issued (Ex S-28), One PT tostified that
Jopanese medical ordorlies came in from tine to time and slipped some medicine
to. the "Special Prisoners" (Ex U), Another "Special Prisoner" stated thore was
a dispensary at Omori to treat serioﬁslyvbeaten_and wounded prisoncrs (Ex U=30),
Numerous P7's stated they roceived more food and bettor treatment at Omori than
thoy had at Ofuna or while imprisoncd by the Kempdi Tai (Ex U-20, U-22, U-25, U~26,
U-30, U-32, U-38, U-41). P7 Trupp stated that while at Ofuna "One prisoner, '
G1ll, initials A, H,, o corporal in the Army, was o modol prisonor and soldom
bothered by tho guards because hé was so sMall in sbtatue being only about 52",
One night ofter the lst of May, Nishi and Sugata enterced Gill's cell and severcly
boat him as he lay in his blankets, Gill must have been injured internally for
he was never able to digest much food after this boating.... His condition be-
camec worse at Omori ond he finally died about tho second weclk in dJunc, His death -
wos due to the boating he received at Ofuna by Nishi and Sugata." (Ex U-35), An-
other PIT statod that all the PW's at Ofuna folt that Hada,who was at Ofuna and .
not Omori, was ‘dirocctly responsible for the death of P7 Gill as he starved hin to
a point where Gill finally died of pnoumonia ond dysentery (Ex U=36), FI Leibold
stated when he first saw P7 Gill at Ofuna, Gill was not in bad shape but before
being transferred to Omori, Gill was nothing but skin oand bones and.did nob veigh .
over 85 lbs, He also stated Fi7 Gill told him he had been beaton and showed hin
the effccts of the beating, P Leibold furthor stated that unlike Ofuna, at
Omori, PT Gill was mever badly beaton oy’ gonerally mistreated, although ho was
hit by o guard with a rifle butt, which, while ndét a severe blow, did raisc a
tump, PI7 O'Kane stated when he first saw BT Gill at Ofuna, he appearcd to be
healthy but he became very thin as the days passed, Gill spent most of his time
in his cell as he had difficulty with his digestion (Ex U=37),
& . -

. Saburo Mizukoshi, Gencral Affairs Officer at Omori fron Decenber
1944 until the end of the war, stated that in discussions sbout the war, P's and
"Special Prisoners", he never heard Sakeba say that they need not be given medical

attention because it did not matter what happened to them (Ex S=42) .,

"As to Specification 8: In June 1942, the Tiar Ministry sent out a _
notification to Army units in charge of Pi%s that stated, "Although the imposition .
of lobour upon prisoncr-of-wor officers and non-cormissioncd officers is pro- -
hibited under Article 1 of the Prisoners of Tar Labour Regulations, it is the
policy of the Central Authorities, in view of the present condition. of this country
which docs not allow anyone to lie idle and eat freely, and also with a ‘view to
- maintaining the health of prisoners of war, to make such officers and non-com- °
missioned officers. voluntecr to work as in accordance with their respective -status,
intelligence, physical strength, etcs You arc therefore. desired to tale proper = -
steps’ accordingly." This same notification quoted Tojo's instructions to the com- -
mander of the Zontogi Divisiomw in May 1942, "To this Division is attached a

. (p 9% of 101, Sakaba ot 1, Casc No., 305)
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. @ prisonors of war camp. Prlsoners of war must be placed under strict discipline

a8 far.as it does not contravene the law of humanity. It is necessary to take
care not to be obsessed With the mistaken idea of humanitarianism or swayed by
the personal feelings towards those prisoners of war which may. grow in the long
time of their 1mprlsonm5nt. The present situation of affairs in this country
does not permit anyone to lie idle doing nothlng but eating freely, With that in
view, in dealing with prisoners of wer, too, I hope you w111 see that they naj be
: usefully employed. (Ex G). »

; Major General Tanaka further stated that in the latter part of 1942
he attended a conference wherein Tojo decided to disregard international laws
and treaties and pub all PW's,regardless of rank, to work (Ex U~19),

The ) Informatlon Bureau, in its monthly report of January 1945,
gave the following instructions: "In the past, you have been instrudted to 1et
By offlcers work on a’ voluntary basis through encouragement, However, owing to
the pressing labor situation in the mainland, the food situation and the incite=
ment of the general public, such indifferent measures can no longer be exerclsed.
It is therefore desired that all P offlcers be put to work in self—supportlng
work, etc., at this time,

"In this connection, it is desired that plans be made for the pro=
motion of their working spirit by explaining to them that idleness is sn immoral
* act which canmot be permlbued By resorting to all possible measures such as _

providing those who work™with food eéquivalent to that received by persons engaged
in work, promising them an increased distribution of a part of the harvest ob-’
tained through self-supporting work, firmly imposing the necessary restrictions
upon those who refuse To WOrk ceeos" : '

Lhe Vice Minister of War stated, "Because.of the supplementary food
51tuat10n in 1945, the various units in the Japanese Army on the mainland engaged
“in local farming in order to increase the amount of vegetablos seee It was cus-
" tomary for convalescing Japanese Army officers %o help with farming these local
gardens. It was not considered o disgrace for officers to do such work, In
Japon at that time, it was necessary for officers and everybody else to go to
work on the farms for self-sufficiency, So at the POW camps, if the officers
- were worked, -they were not worked to humiliate them but to make it possible for
them to help sustain themselves," (Ex S-44).

! "Sokaba in reply to a question by the Swiss Legatlon staff member who
_v1s1tod Omor%fIn February 1945 dOand that officers were requlrod Lo work (Ex S~45),

As to Specification 9: Not guilty,

"As to Specification 10: See general evidence, suprae

As to Specification 11: Not guilty, finding.

As to Specification 12: Sec general ovidence;, supfa.

As to Spebification 13: Stricken, defonse motion (R 69),

h "As to Speclflcatlon 14: See general evidence supra, In addition,

"in regard to the Rae incident kSpec‘14-k) the Labor Scction head of the company
employing PA's from Omori stated he was told, in the summer of 1944, thwt MFuji-
kawa. and Rae werc arguing over whether  work would be done or not, Anzai,  the
labor - supervisor, (sagyo hancho), then went over to their work site to clarify
things. Rae apparently thought that Anzai came over to assist Fujikawe ond lmocked
him down a couple of times. As’ o result, Anzai lost about four tecth. . Sakurai
was called to Omori-to explain this incident, Sokura relayed what had taien place -
‘at Omori, Salkurai met 2nd Licutenant Koto, who said that suitable measures would
bc t;kon about Rae, but he wanted to kmow what the company Vs going to do about
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their men, Sakurai told him that the company would reprimand the workers and boseed
forgiveness for this incident, and told him that this sort of incident would not °
tako place again; further that he would instruct the company workers on the mat~
ter of corporal punishment. Fujikawa and Anzai both received 20 days' reprimand,..
Later Sakurai told him that the POWs requested Anzai's presence at the work site,
Sekurai went to Omori Comp and negotiated with Lieutenant Kato, which resulted
-in his reprimand being decrcased to about 15 days." '

: - Kuto Fukijima'(Specs l4m, n, o, p), former Japanese soldier, stated
- he was on duty as a soldier at Omori and civilian guard at Konose P Comp, At
Omori, Sakabo was a military disciplinarisn and instructed him as to saluting
and informed him corporal punishment of PW's was forbidden, Despite this, on his
own initiative, hé beat two Pi*s at Omori, including Dr. Weinstein and o modical
1st lieutenant but ‘did not report these beatings to Sakaba or any other Japanese
personnel, He also stated that although on one occasion, Watanabe beat him for
releasing a IV from punishmont, he did not roport this tos Sakebae Fe furthor
stated that at Konose ho was instructed by Licutonant Azuma not to beat Pi's but,
on his own initiative, ho administerecd two beatings and made no report as to these -
beatings (R 69),

Fujii tostified (R 623 of Casc Docket #111) that he only slapped BW
Buchanan (Spec 1l40-6) with his open hand and PW Buchanan was not hurt and cone
tinued to work and he did not look for his sword to kill Py Buchanan, .

As to Specificdtion 15: Not guilty, finding,

‘As to Specification 16: Saburo Mizukoshi, camp commander of the
Sumidagawa -Dispatch Camp from July 1944 to Decembor 1944, stated Sokaba told him
since the buildings at Sumidagowa had not been finishod ho must exort his utmost
efforts in that direction and he did this and the. buildings were ready for. occu-
pancy when the PT's arrived, Sakaba, after an inspection, stated they were suite-
able for housing prisoners, The negotiations had been carried on by the company
ond the EDA before he arrived at comp., Although he did not recoive any instruc=-
tions from Sakaba concerning Red Cross parcels, he know he had to take special
precautions in hondling thems During the time he was camp commander, he did not
lmow of any beatings that took place and; thereforo, never made any report to
Sekeba concerning PW's, Sakaba fulfilled all his requisitions and never instructed
him to sond more men out to work., Sckaba absolutely prohibited corporal punish-
ment of Hi's and stressed the observance of military courtosies and tho abiding
by ‘established rules (Ex S-42), <

- As to Spocification 17: Shigeru Numajiro, former camp cormander,
statod (Ex R-32) Wo-had o difficult time in sgouring supplemontary food for the
PT's and Sakaba mado o special visit to his camp to assist in alleviating this
food shortage ond even threatened to withdraw the Ryt's from this company if thoy
did not supply food, When he requested that PV's be hospitalized at Shinagawa,
Sakaba never refused to do so and the PT's, upon being returned, were in much bet-
ter health, Seokaba absolutely forbade corporal punishmont and the sending of sick
BT's to work, Sakoba never reprimanded him for his lenient treatment of Pi's -
when the Governor of Tochigi Prefecture complained to tho Home Ministry about the
leniency. (See evidence in general, supra).‘ During an inspection.of the work
site, when Sakoba saw & sign which read, "Annihilate the Americans and British"y
he had it erased. The greatest problem he had as a commander was the stealing by
the Pi's, Although-he never authorized corporal punishment by the guards, he
(Nnmajiro)—punished PI's by confining them and reported this to the main camp,
However, Sakaba would not know about RT's being tied up to make them confess bo-

" calisa no report concerning this was forwarded to the main camp. Red Cross parcels
were treated as belonging to tho P's as per instructions received by the main
camp but. Pi's gave or traded them with Japancse personnel, : '

|
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A Kichi Katoku, interpreter at Ashio, stated (Ex R-33) when he reached
Ashio in November 1944, there were mony patients suffering from beri-beri, Dr,
Fujii made an inspection trip in December 1944 and sent about thirty patients to
Shinagawa. Dr, Fujii mode another inspection trip in February 1945 and about -
twenty PT's were sent to -Shinagawn., Sakoba made an inspection in April 1945 gnd
upon discovering that the Ri's were lice~infosted, he ordered their clothing and -
bedding Be boiled and this was dono and the situation was effoctively corrected,
Sakaba instructed the Japanese personnel to take various sanitary measures, In
the December 1944 inspection, Dr, Fujii had the prisoners strip outdoors and mis-
treated many of thems Dr. Fujii succoedod, howevor, in having the company fure
nish more medicine and foéod, : . '

g

. Pl Gallion was ‘caught stealing and when Gallion did not confess,
Numa jiro bedt his checks with o leather slipper for five minutes and then had PW
Gallion confined to the guardhouso for three days untils he confossed and then
Numa jiro released him without further punishment, - P Hall was suspectod of theft
‘and Numnjiro slappod him and ordered him t6 be hung by his handcuffed wrists for -
. five minutes but the only injury resulting was that P77 Hall's wrists wore scratched,
In February 1945, Pl Jones reported that &7 Durr was a thief and had many Red
Cross articles in his room. Durr and the Red Cross articles were brought to Numa- -
jiro and Durr accused P Ikonhorse and both P's accused cach other of the thoft,
Durr was made to kmeel and hold a chair in his outstretched hand and Nishi slap=-
ped hinm if he loverod his arms. Durr was then hung up by his wrists and con-
fessed and was afterwards confined to the guard housec, Pi's Weeal and Quintana,
when they refused té confoss to a crime, wore hung by their wrists in the guard
house, Thore wero also about four others involved in this-incident,

The defense introduced Exhibit R-34, which was a lotter whorein the
Fi's in this camp roquested that PV Durr be transforred to another campe.

As to Spccification 18: Not guilty, finding,

: As to Spocifications19 & 20s Sumio Sugimoto, on omployee of ‘whe compony
using P's from Comp 39~B, Ashio, lator lmowm as 7-D Dispatch Camp, stated (Ex
' R-41) Sakaba made an inspoction trip in Moy 1944 ond April and May 1945. Sokaba
ordered the extermination of insects ond Christian burial for dead Pi's, Sakaba
also emphasized the prevention of injury, Tho company suppliecd food end medicine
despite the .complaints of the Japancse people in the arena, :

o

4 - Xanichiro Yoshizown, comp commonder at 9-B, Ashio, from April 1944
until the end of the war, statod (Ex R-42) that around May 1944, Sokaba made on
inspection tour of the camp omd the work sites, He told him to get the sick cured -
as soon as possible and to roise the work porcentoge, if possible, He directed
that those patients on light duty should be placed on work appropriate to their
sickness; that they should not do -any work to injure their health, He instructed
him corporal punishment should not be administered to PT's because it would cro-
ate resontment toward the Japanese and the prisonors would attempt to escape.,
Sokaba .told the company officials tho Fi's should not come in contact with females,
the compony should prevent injurios to the PI's and should provide them with
rubber-soled tabi at the factory to prevent slipping, He instructed the company
that the RI's rest place must be kept in a sonitary condition ond adoquate air
raid shelters ond precautions should be -taken, . ‘

Keitoro Fukijims; gunzoku (civilian employed by Army) at P Camp 16-D,
‘Konose, stated (Ex R-69) although insttucted by the comp commander, Licutenant Ammw
not to beat Fi's and to troat them fairly, he, Fukijima, administered two
beatings on his own initiative and did not report it to anyone,

. Exhibits R=67 and R-68 are letters of clemenoy‘in}:ehalf of ,
Fukijimo by former Fi's, FPT Chater asked clemency for Lieutenant Azuma, the comp
cormander, stated (Ex R=66) that most of the iicidents, especially the worst ones,.
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were ‘carried out in Azuma's absence without his sanotion or Imowledge and the
Japanese camp personnel were concerned lest the news should reach Azuma's ears,
Azums, tried his best to get everything within reason that the Pi's requested, He
took & personal interest in the PW's, especially the sick and spent much time out
of cemp procuring medicines, books and recreational equipment, - The decision of
the PW doctor as to whether or not men should go to work was final, There was
only one death, which was probably due to natural causes or a mistaken diagnosis
by the PW doctor. -Azuma was accessible and upon hearing complaints, took remedial
action and protected the PW's from the actiors of the company when it tried to

. exploit them, PW Beament also asked clemency for Azume and Ishibe stated that
Azuma did everything he could for the PW's and his only crime was being camp com-
mander (R 64), PW Janis stated (R 65) that Azums was liked snd respected by all

- Bfs, Azuma, at times, took-disciplinary action against men who broke clearly
understood regulations. This action was taken against men who violated orders
from  their own officers as well as. the Japenese. regulations and would have been
in trouble even within their own units. .The principal offenders not only stole
from the Japanese but from their fellow Fi's, PW's Aiken, Gavard, Jones and -
Martingdale were in this category and their evidence should not be given credibil-

Yoshio Suda, former camp commander of Dispatch Camp 24, Kawasali,
from December 1944 until July 1945, stated (Ex R-43) that prior to assuming come
mond, he was briefed as to his duties at Omori and Sakaba told him to treat PW's
with fairness and it was imperative that the Fil's health be maintained, ' Sakaba
never set a percentage of men that had to go to work, He, Sudo, never reported
to Sakaba that PW's were complaining of mistreatment. His request to hospitalize
Pi's was never refused and Sakaba fulfilled all requests in behalf of the PW's,
Sakabe instructed that Red Cross packages were strictly for PW's and they were so
distributed, In May 1945, General Tamure of the Prisoner of War Information
Bureau stated, after sceing the charts as to the weights of the PW's, the PW's
were not working Hard enough. Sudo never made a report to Sokaba concerning the
actions of gunzoku Shiogawsa,

: PV McGrew, former prisoner at Licutenant Sudo's camp, stated (Ex R-44)
he was slapped by Sudo when he had done something wrong. The food was compara-
tively excellent and Sudo insisted upon sanitation in the kitchen, Working con=-
ditions were better than in other camps and Sudo's attitude was one of fairness.

- Yasuji Sawano, an official of the company where PW's in Sudo's camp
were cmployed, stated (Ex R-40) Licutenant Sudo insisted on regular working hours,
improved camp facilities, secured additional medicines and that Sekaba requested
air reid shelters be built,

: Kuma ji Sudo, branch commander of Camp 31, Kewasaki, until July 1945,
stated (Ex R=59) he was under Licutenant Takeuchi, who was succeeded by Lieuternant
Emori and both issued orders that F's be treated fairly, in accordance with regu=
lations, Sakaba visited tho camp and gave instructions as to sanitation and said
corporal punishment was forbidden, In 1945, Lieutenant Emori instructed camp per-
.sonnel they must protect PW's with their lives if the Japanese people raided the
camp because of -their hatred for the PW's, He further stated that Red Cross sup-
plies would be turned over to the PW officers and during Christmas 1944, Lieuten-
ant Commander Newman gave Lieutenant Emori some Red Cross supplies,

<b

} An official of the company where Fil's from Kawaseki Branch Camp #1
were cmployed stated (Ex R-61) Sokaba said that PW's should be treated with benc-
volence and no corporal punishment. should be administered to them, Sakaba also
gave instructions concerning the protection and welfare of Pi's and the company ’
‘supplied clothing and medicines for the usc of the P7's, :

An official of another company wherc Pi's from this same camp worked .
- stated (Ex R=70) Sokaba came to the work site once or twice monthly vith Lieuten= -
ant Emori and,told them there would be no corporal punishment administered to

- (p'96 of 101, Sakaba et 1, Case Mo, 305)

) s o) i v
4 AL T T Vi




/ //‘1/2/ 4//5

's and cverft.alng “should be done for uho:.r care 'w.nd urolw.ro. Two company doc=
- tors, who lived nearby, were available to treat Pi's in casc of anccidents but nono
occurred, The company igsued extra food, work clothing and oggs to FPi's whenever
possible a.ndconstruo’ced'air raid shelters for them. :

: Mlchl;)l Ish:.ge, ‘camp commander of Kawasaki Brmcn Comp +7 f£r om August
1943 to Moy 1945, stated (BEx R-11) Sakaba inspected the camp twice and the camp
was cleaned up for these inspoctions, Sakaba instructed them the PF¥'s must be
treatod fairly and corporal punishment should not be administered,

: A company official where PT's from Branch Camp 37 were employed
stated (E}L R~12) Sakabo requested additional food and larger and more sanitary .

rost rooms, He issued orders forbidding corporal punlshnent and had the compony
cstablish 'air raid shelters for the Pf's.

; B Blrchall, BT oot Yokohama P7T 'Camp, stated (Bx R=37) Sakaba visited
the camp.and the Asano Dockyard area in lay snd lectured the dockyard ofi‘lcmls
rogarding work clothing and extra food; stated there was considerable unrcat-
camp because the PT doctor was favoring certain men over others and thesc men ODCY]].J
admitted they wore not too sick and it was well kmovm they had all lont money to

his' PT7 doctor; during an inspection, the Japanese medical orderlies brought o
big load of empty medical boxes to impress Sakaba. He also sbtated PT's were work-
ing 1% hours less in 194:5' tha.n in 1944 because of the rbducod rations,

Offici als from the Tsumi Shlpya.rds er*mloylng PM's from Comp 3-D and
the Yokohama Ship=-building Yard omploying Pi's from ;<10 Dispatch Camp stated (Ex
R-47, R-48). Sakaba ordered these companies to provide medicines for sick Pi's and
insisted PT's be treated like the Japanese workers. '

B Finn stated (Ex R-50) Licutenant Uwamori canvassed the drug storcs
in order to obtain medicines and only a.d:minis’cered mass punishment on one occasion,

Licutenant Masao Uwamori, who was concurrc"xtl ¥ cormandant of B Camps ~
3=D, 10-D and 11-D, stated (Bx R-54) Salaba summoned him to the main camp and told
him the Kempei Tai had reported the personnel of the Tsumori Shipyards were having
great difficulty with him because of his attitude towards Pii's, Uwomori explained

hat his policy of treating PT's was in accord with international law and the
Tsumori Shipyards' porsonnel were 'vory reluctant to coopcrate, Sakaba just grinned
and told him he had been justified iu his actions and no further 'action was taken,
Sakaba attempted to gain the withdrawal of the Pits from the Tsumori Shipyards but
the Tiar Ministry. refused to do s0¢ In Soptomber 1944, whon sick Dutch, American
and Australian Pi's arrived at Camps 104D and 11-D, Sakaba provided edis e, Al
permitted the Pi's to rest until their health was restored and during a two month
period the Fi's gained five kilograoms in treight, Because of the uncooperative at-
titude-of the Tsumori .Shipyards, Sakaba withdrew 96 Pl's from Tthe camp under the
guise of hospi uallzn.ng them at Snlno.gmm.

. : I\Iaso.o Yo.ma.be, former official of the Tsumor:L i‘actory where PT's from

'PR Camp 11-D were employed, stated (Ex R=~55) they received mony inspections by _

-military mén and both the EDA.and the No.vy. Colonel Selkaba camo on oneé or two 0C=
oasidns. and instructed them to build air raid shelters for the P's, give them

~additional food and improve the barracks, He also emphatically stated corporal
punishnent oi‘ Fits vas s’crlctly forbidden, = 37 : '

Ishlchl Tsuzu;{:\., an employee of the Tsumori Shlpjﬂrd., vihore Pi's fronm
the Yokohama.' comps Were employed, .stated (Ex R=56) -he had met Sakaba on three or
four occasions ond S:ua.ba requested the aocormodatlono and food for Pits be im=-
proved. UL

" An officia 1 oi” the co‘:p'mv .here Pits from Branch C'mp #3, fokohainzi,‘
wore' employed stated (Ex R=57) Sn.ka.bﬁ. visited um’.) vorkz site in July 1944 md told

’
!
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- the &ssenbled company represontﬂtlves that PI's are not oriminals and they must
be treated in accordance with the spirit of intermational low. and with bencvo-
lonce and should not be given any corporal punishment, He also told them the
main camp was limited in its budget and the food allotted to the FPi's was not
sufficient for those doing hard physical labor and. the: company should assist the|
branch comps in obtaining addltlonwl food: for the Plts,

Tsuruichi TmLahwsnl, o member of the company staff at Yokoname DlS-
pateh Camp :#19, stated (Bx R-46) Salkaba inspected the camp in June 1944 and Ap-
ril 1945 and on both occasions he instructed thew the Hi's wore to bo treated
fairly, Colonel Sakaba's policy was that Pi's should not be mistroated but
despite this, somo of them werc slapped. . "hen Fits complained, he-transmitbe
. their complaints to Lieutenant Kamatsuno or Scrgownt Monoe In April 1945, when
Salkabo asked 2nd Licutenants Ford and Hard if they wished to work, the officers
volunteered to- vork mnd were not forced in any way to do 50s

-%

An. OLflGlal of the company. enploylnf Pits from‘YoLohmna camps stated
(Ex R=-48) Sakaba instructed that the prisoners .be ‘afforded the same treatment as
that accorded to Japanese workers, Major Goneral Yomaguchi of the EDA, after
~inspeeting the work site, praisod. the campany for its handling of Fi's, noting
that the PW's had increased in‘weight © on an average of five kilograms,

- An official of another company" enployxng Aits from Camp ”22D, SaLatw,
stated (Bx R-45) Sakaba visited the work site in the spring of 1945 and criti-
cized Lieutenant Tiatanabe because the air raid practice was not conducted effi-
clently. He instructod the company officials P's must be treated fairly and
no corporal punlsnnent should be admlnlstered. :

The company secured food and ﬁcdlclﬂe for the Fits and conplled with
~ ‘the many requestq for addltlonql °uppllos for the use of Pr‘s.

A company official, employing P's from the Komaishi BT Canp, stated
(Ex R-58) Sakaba inspected the worl site quite o fow times and instructed them -~
that the Pi's should be treated benovolently, in accordance with international law
and under no circumstances should corporal punishment be administored, ' He also
instructed them to put Pi's on suitable jobs, to comply with working hours, to
socurc additional medicines for the Pi's and to. alleviate the Pi's hardships as
rmch as possible by securing additional food for them. He also instructed them
to enlarge the RT sick roor,

4. Opinion:

There are no errors or irregularitics which injuriously affocted any
substontial rights of either of the accused. The commission was legally consti-
tuted by proper authority and had jurisdiction over each of the accused and of

the offenses charged, There is no evidence that either of the aceused wms not
‘sane ot the time of the cormmission of the alleged acts or at the time of the trial,
The accused werc ably defended by competent counsel, cooperated in their ovn de-
 fense, produced witnesses in their orm bechalf .and, qfter being varned of fheir
rights, elcoted not to testify, Except as hereinafter stated, the findings of
the commission concerning each of these accused are legal and supported by suffi-
cient evidencc, '
, The commission could reasoriably find as o Oqch of these accused that.
1ey had knowledge of many of -the incidents allpgod to have occurrcd at Omori, -
hose who have had Army cxperience rcalize that if beatings occurrcd with the
,frequoncy sct forth in the present casc, it would be alnost 1mp0331b10 to kecep
hem secret from the commander (U,8. .v Tanakn, Case Docket 3 3F145),° The cormis-
sion could.certainly find that these accused were put on rotlce and should have -
knovm that the Fii's at Omori were belgg abused. I{ is well cstabllshod that; on

e
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the basis of this knowledge, each of these acoused, in his capacity as PV camp
commander, had the duty to take proper measures within his power to prevent his
subordinates from subjecting HV's to violence, abuse and cruelty (UsSe v Kana=
yama, Case Docket 7133 U,S, v Nichizawa et al, Case Docket 5463 UsS. v Yajima,
Case Docket 7#66), Except for the mere verbal instructions as to oliminations
of corporal punishment, the record does not reveal that either of these accused
took_ appropriate measures within his power to correct the obvious abuses at
Omori, It is, therefore, concluded that the commission could, as to sach of
the accused, reasonably arrive at its finding of guilty of the offenses occur-
ring at Omori. . : Ly

B The evidence does not sustain the commission’s findings as to Specifi-
cations 6, 7, 8, 9%k, 9u, 10 and 11 as to the accused Suzuki and Specifications
16, 17, 19 and 20 as to the accused Sakaba, Prosecutiorls proof of these speci-
ficatlons consisted of military commission orders or copies of approved charges
and specificatiens revealing the conviction of the accuseds alleged subordin-
ates of the alleged incidents alleged in the above mentioned specifications and
sub-specifications, The commission, upon being asked to take Jjudicial notice of"
the trials resulting in the above mentioned military commission orders and ap-
proved charges and specifications, did so but stated that the taking of judicial
" notice was not considered to be accepting them in evidence (R 432), The com-
mission further stated that the prosecution must point out the pages of testi-
mony or specific exhibits that they desired the commission to comsider (R 413),
Later, when the prosecution attempted to offer into evidonce the records of some
of the cases of which the commission had taken this limited judicial notice, the
commission refused to accept them, stating that it was administratively impossible
for the commission to read all the records but stated that the prosccution could
moke specific refprence to these records in the closing argument or in answer to
any motion of the defense (R 783). The prosecution f£ailed either to point out or
make specific reference to the particular portions of the records bearing on
these specifications and thus this reviewer con only consider the evidence that
was properly before the commission, namely the above mentioned military commission
orders or approved charges and specifications. ‘

, It is not necossary to decide the question:that might have arisen had the
comunission taken judicial notice of these records without limiting the scaope
thereof and no opinion is given expressly or by implication as to this question,
If the commission had considered.the rocords of these cases, it cannot be said 7
beyond a reasonable doubt that they might not have arrived at a different conclue
. sion as it is woell known that different verdicts moy legally be arrived at even
though the cvidenco is substantially the same (Fall v US 49 Fed 2d 506 Certiorari
Denied 283 US 867), The prosecution must provo every elemont of an offense’ be=-
yond a reasonable doubt so as to exclude any fair and rational hypothesis except
that of guilt (par 78 MCM pg 74). '

- It is not believed +that the military commission orders, etc, introduced
herein, even established what might (by an analogy to civil cases) be called a
prima facie case as thorc is the additional factor to be proved, namely that the .
accused, if considered to be on notice, could have recasonably discovered these
abusess  Even if those military commission orders, etc, were deemed to present a
prima facic case, the defenise, by its ovidence of instructions by each accused as
to the climination of corporal punishment and unsanitary conditions and the ad-
missions in many instances by suberdinates .that conditions were kept hidden from
both accused, sustained its burden of adducing evidence and thus the prosecution,
by not introducing further proof, failed to sustain its ever-present burden of
proof, . , . ' -
o A different question is presented as to Specification 9 against the ac-
cused Suzuki, The comnission not only took the limited judicial notice as above -
but had before it certain pages of the ‘record and certain exhibits extracted from
U.8. v Yoshida, Case Docket ;/69, which were duly incorporated by roference into .
this record. Excopt as to sub-specifications.9dd and 9ee, the commission, on the
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“basis’ of the evidence properly before i%t, could reasonably find that tho incidents
alleged actually did occur,. The only remaining question is whether Suzuki can be
held responsible for these acts., Tho evidence horein establishes “that .Suzuki
‘should have kmown PW's werc being beaten and otherwise ‘torbured and abused at
Omori end thus Suzuki was placed on notice that his subordinates were committing
offenses proscribed by the Hague and Geneva Conventions, Suzuki should have known
that if-his subordinates, directly under his control, were cormitting these of-
fenses, it wgs more than likely that similar instances were occurring at branch
camps and thus he had the duty of inquiry, A camp commander has the duty to pro=
tect prisoners and, by the use of diligence, must determine that they are not be=
1nb mlstreaued (Nlchlzawa et al, Case Docket §46; U,S. v Uchida, Case Docket 763
UeSe v Hashlmono, Case Dockot 7166). Moreover, in this instance the evidence dis-
-closed that beatings at this camp were so commonplace. that even a casual investi-
gatlon would have disclosed the necessity for taking actions to protect the prise
oners’s It may be noted that in December 1943, Suzuk1 sent Fujil to investigate tho
_ hlgh death rate and to reduce the numbor of sick PW's and that Fujii did, by send=-
ing sick FW's to work, The commission could reasonably find that this accused
~ did not use the necessary diligence in determlnlng whether the Pi's were being
mistreated and could, thereforo, reasonably arrive at their findings, The evie
doence "in Case Docket #69, supra, sustaining the flndlngs as to Specifications 9dd .
and 9ee, wos not incorporated into the record and thus in view of the above dis-
cu331on, these findings cannot be sustained.

5, Recommondatlons}

Xunji SUZUKI, It is recommended that the accused be found not guilty of
Speclflcatlons 6, 7, 8, 9%, Yu, 9dd, 9%ee, 10 and 11,

Letters of clemency from a former Prince, and presently chief priest of
the Meiji Shrine, a former Count and vice=president of the House of Peecrs, a for=
mer Minister of State, a president of a college and former Minister of Education,
a college professor, Father Ronan, Japanese prlests, fellow-tovnsmen, and the
wife and relatives of the accused have been received, These petitions offer no
new evidenco, except that three of these individuals visited Omori and observed
Suguki's kind treatment of the PW's, his interost in sanltatlon and revealed that
Suzuki admitted that Red Cross articles were missing at Omori despite his best
cffortses The clemency file algo includes an affidavit from a former BW, who stated
that although Suzuki took corrective action on ‘one occasion whon o brutality was
reported to him, it wos apparent he had o lack of interest in the Pi's and failed
to control his subordinates. This affidavit also revealed that Suzuki was not
accessible and that the affiant did not believe that Suzukn’s subordinates re-
ported the complaints of the Pi's to hlm. :

Desplte these petitions and the recommendation that the commission's
flndlng of guilty as to Specifications 6, 7, 8, 9k, 9u, 9dd, 9ec, 10 and 11 bo
disapproved, it is not thought that the sentence of confinement at hard labor for.
. life is excessive and it is accordingly recommended that the sentence be approved.

3 Kaname SAKABA. It is recommended that the accuscd be found not gullty
of Specifications 16, 17 19 and 206 -

~

A letter of clemency, signed by the chief, directors, and over 200 other
emplcyees of the Yokohama Branch Yard of the Osaka Dock:Yard Company, has bcen
received, Both this petition and an affidavit from a former FW, also included in
the petition file, present no additional evidence, Despite the rocormendation as
to Specifications 16, 17, 19 and 20, it is not felt that the sentence of confine-
ment at hard labor fcr llfe is excessive ond it is acc rdlngly recomncnded that
-the sentence be approved. A
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Gy~ Action: i -

~ Attached hereto are forms of action designed to carry-into offect the
above reccommondationsa :

NORMAN CARROLL
Reviewer

I'concur generally. The evidence would hawe supported the
extreme penalty as to each accused. However in view: of the limita-
tlons placed upon the Reviewing Authority with respect to prohibitions
t§ increasing the sentence of the comiission, approval is recommended.

The defense motion to sever has been disposed of adversely to
defense in many cases heretofor (cf US v Ichinoe, #265, etc.). In
this case three American and four Japanese lawyers aided and
counselled the two accused so they were adequately supplied with.
legal protection. ' o

- The court set special rules for admission of portions of other
records of "trial as evidence by requiring that the pages of the .
record and the affidavits to be offered be designated (R 413, 415, 432,
474, 717, 772, 785, 838). This was a reasonable rule but, in the
instances in which disapproval of the findings 1s recommended, it
was not complied with by the prosecution. ' -
Defonse corment is noted: o _
"MR. KAYE: May the defense at this time state that *
~ there never has been anytime in any of the defense
counsel's mind, and I can speek for the Japanese
counsel as well, that this Court wasn't fully
conscious of and completely on guard for the
rights of the accused in' this case,"

ALLAN R BROWNE
Lt Col  JAGC

Army Judge Advecate - .
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